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Financial Highlights

2020 2019
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RExE OPERATING RESULTS
Wz Revenue 819,503 980,844
EF Gross profit 156,892 226,191
< Evingl Operating profit 14,692 63,253
RARERIFTE ABIEFERRF  Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of 1,451 33,390
the Company
BREARRESRNCEW) Basic and diluted earnings per share 0.07 2.23
(HK cents)
g 29 FINANCIAL POSITION
mEBEE Current assets 637,049 494,598
MENBE Current liabilities 582,013 479,342
FMEBEE Non-current assets 108,517 117,094
EMBEE Non-current liabilities 25,848 80,195
ARRREDRFTE ARG Equity attributable to equity holders of the 137,705 52,155
Company
ERMBLER KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FEH=E Gross profit margin 19.1% 23.1%
FFER Net profit margin 0.2% 3.4%
REas R (KEE1) Return on equity (Note 1) 1.5% 37.8%
BEER X (HIFE2) Return on total assets (Note 2) 0.2% 4.3%
MBI Current ratio 1.1 {Ztimes 1.0 fEtime
FEARBRELE(FES) Net gearing ratio (Note 3) 19.7% 245.2%
M5E Notes:
1. ##& @#ﬁz&?}ﬂkiﬁq/ IR ABEZER 4 1. The calculation of return on equity is based on profit for the year divided by
BREZRLA100%ETE average balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.
2. BEAERRRIVEFRNEFBRABEENFY 2. The calculation of return on total assets is based on profit for the year divided
EEREIRLAT00%EHE © by average balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.
3. ﬁ*ﬁﬁ@ & ttﬂ&?@fﬁfﬂﬁ?ﬁ\?ﬂﬁfﬁi&ﬁ 3. The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total bank borrowings net of
ZEMR A B ERA100%5E cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.
4 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Five-Year Financial Summary

mERA CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BZ12A31BLFE
For the year ended 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FET FET FET FAET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Was Revenue 819,503 980,844 1,257,295 1,232,653 687,659
K A Operating profit 14,692 63,253 107,384 95,408 3,365
$€ﬂ$§ﬁé Profit for the year
EE}:;%J{E attributable to equity
A holders of the Company 1,451 33,390 77,018 74,172 982
MABEHESEME CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
M2A31H
As at 31 December
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
FHERT T FHET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
MENEE Current assets 637,049 494,598 806,318 802,099 438,781
mEAE Current liabilities 582,013 479,342 770,146 827,414 502,537
FERBEE Non-current assets 108,517 117,094 137,319 78,991 71,068
FEREBAE Non-current liabilities 25,848 80,195 48,774 145 2,328
ANNRETIEAB A Equity attributable to equity
fE{hRER holders of the Company 137,705 52,155 124,717 53,531 4,984
B ERERERAT 5
202043
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Chairman’s Statement
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” and
each a “Director”) of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the
annual results and consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (“FY2020").

The unprecedented Novel Coronavirus (“COVID-19”) pandemic has
spread in many countries, where our major customers and suppliers are
located, and has adversely affected the global economy. In addition, the
intense trade tensions between the United States (“U.S.”) and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) have continued to affect the market
demand for our products. As mentioned in the Company’s 2020 interim
report, the combined impact of these factors has adversely affected the
Group’s financial performance in the first half of FY2020. The Group's
revenue was HK$283.1 million and the Group suffered from a loss of
HK$22.4 million for the first half of FY2020. Amid the challenges and
difficult operating conditions, there were signs of reasonable recovery
and the Group experienced rebound in orders from some of our major
customers in the second half of FY2020. With our resilient manufacturing
capabilities and our efforts in overcoming the challenges, we achieved
revenue of HK$536.4 million and profit of HK$23.9 million in the
second half of FY2020. As a result, the Group recorded a total revenue of
HK$819.5 million for FY2020, reflecting a decrease of HK$161.3 million
or 16.4% as compared to revenue of HK$980.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (“FY2019”), despite the adverse impacts from
the COVID-19 pandemic.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company for
FY2020 amounted to HK$1.5 million (FY2019: HK$33.4 million). The
decrease in profit for FY2020 was mainly attributable to the loss suffered
in the first half of FY2020 as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, which
was offset by the profit attained in the second half of FY2020 when the
global economy had been gradually adapting to the conditions of the
COVID-19 pandemic.

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK$0.005 per share.

PROSPECTS

In the past few months, the new variants of COVID-19 have spread
quickly and resulted in new lockdown measures in the U.S., the United
Kingdom (“U.K.”) and other major countries where our customers and
suppliers are located. While the deployment of vaccines may keep the
virus under control, it is likely that the global economy and operating
conditions will remain challenging and full of uncertainties in 2021. It
may need some time before the global economy and business activities
to resume to pre-pandemic levels.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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We continued our efforts in developing and exploring new product
applications and segments, such as Internet of Things (“loT”) connected
devices for industrial and commercial applications, healthcare products
and medical products used for rapid infectious disease testing. Some
of these products are in the final stage of the new product introduction
and obtaining regulatory approvals, where appropriate. We expect these
products would commence mass production and initial shipment in
2021.

As stated in our 2020 interim report, we intended to set up a production
facility in the South East Asia region (the “New Asia Plant”) with a
potential joint venture partner to expand our manufacturing capability
outside the PRC. The negotiation process of setting up the New Asia
Plant was slow and certain preparation work was affected by the border
controls and new lockdowns measures caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. Subject to the negotiation progress with the potential joint
venture partner and possible further disruptions due to the COVID-19
pandemic, we expect to finalize the negotiation and commence the
set-up of the New Asia Plant in the first half of 2021 and to commence
operations by the second half of 2021. As at the date of this annual
report, no legally-binding agreement was entered into for the set-up of
the New Asia Plant.

The year 2021 will be challenging as it takes time for the global economy
and business activities to gradually adjust to the new normal. Also, the
business and operating environment will continue to be full of challenges
and uncertainties, mainly due to fluctuations in Renminbi, disruptions
in supply chain and logistics, and surge in materials and commodity
prices. Having said that, with our extensive industry experience, strong
technical knowledge and resilient manufacturing capabilities along with
strong relationship with our customers and suppliers, we are confident
that we could tackle the uncertainties and continue to provide quality
services and products to our customers and maximize our values to our
Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation to our customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuous support. | would like to also thank the
management team and all staff members for their contribution during the
year.

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$819.5 million for FY2020 (FY2019:
HK$980.8 million), reflecting a decrease of HK$161.3 million, or
16.4%. Such decrease was mainly due to the adverse impacts from the
COVID-19 pandemic as mentioned in the Chairman’s Statement of this
annual report.

For FY2020, our products were shipped to over 24 (FY2019: 21)
countries and regions. The U.S. continued to be our largest market,
which contributed to HK$439.7 million (FY2019: HK$565.4 million),
or 53.7% (FY2019: 57.6%) of our total revenue. The decrease in sales
to the U.S. was in line with the overall drop in the Group’s sales due to
the adverse impacts caused by the COVID-19 pandemic. The changes
in sales mix to other major countries of the world were mainly the
combined impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and change of distribution
strategy from some of our major customers between countries.

Gross profit amounted to HK$156.9 million (FY2019: HK$226.2 million),
representing a decrease of HK$69.3 million, or 30.6%, while the gross
profit margin decreased from 23.1% for FY2019 to 19.1% for FY2020.
The decrease in gross profit and gross profit margin were mainly due to
the drop in revenue as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and decrease
in sales of products with higher margins while the drop in our factory
overhead was not significant due to the majority being fixed costs in
nature.

The selling and distribution and administrative expenses amounted to
HK$135.7 million (FY2019: HK$168.0 million), reflecting a decrease
of HK$32.3 million or 19.2%. The decrease was primarily due to the
absence of listing expenses in FY2020 (FY2019: HK$17.3 million) and
the decrease in employee benefit costs and other selling and distribution
and administrative expenses attributable to our cost control measures in
response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Net finance costs decreased by HK$8.1 million, or 42.0% from HK$19.3
million for FY2019 to HK$11.2 million for FY2020. The decrease
was mainly due to the combined effects of (i) the decrease in interest
expenses on bank borrowings of HK$6.7 million; (ii) the decrease in
interest expenses on lease liabilities of HK$0.7 million; and (iii) the
increase in interest income of HK$0.7 million.

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company for FY2020 amounted to HK$1.5 million
(FY2019: HK$33.4 million).

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$10.0
million (2019: HK$20.0 million), representing HK$0.005 (2019:
HK$0.01) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Tuesday, 1 June 2021 (the “2021 AGM”"), the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or before Wednesday, 23 June 2021 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 8 June 2021.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through a combination of internally generated funds from its operating
activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s
bank borrowings were HK$261.5 million (31 December 2019: HK$266.6
million) while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$234.4
million (31 December 2019: HK$138.6 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total net borrowings amounted to
HK$27.1 million (31 December 2019: HK$128.0 million) while its total
equity amounted to HK$137.7 million (31 December 2019: HK$52.2
million), resulting in a net gearing ratio of 19.7% (31 December 2019:
245.2%). The net gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of
cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by
100%.

The Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current and future working
capital requirements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group incurred total capital expenditures of HK$19.4 million during
FY2020 (FY2019: HK$19.4 million) for additions of properties, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had capital commitments in relation
to the purchase of plant and machinery contracted but not provided for
in the amount of HK$4.9 million (31 December 2019: HK$2.2 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Group
was not involved in any legal proceedings pending or threatened against
our Group which could have a material adverse effect on our business or
operations. Besides, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, there was no charges over the assets of the
Group while as at 31 December 2019, the Group had certain bank
deposits pledged to secure the Group’s banking facilities in the amount
of HK$10.0 million.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, there was no significant investments held by
the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the United States
dollars (“USD”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). Most of the Group’s
sales proceeds are received in USD and some of the Group’s purchases
and operating expenses are denominated in RMB. The Group closely
monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure from time to time and
will adopt a proactive but prudent approach to minimize the relevant
exposures.

The Group did not enter into any derivative instruments to hedge against
its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 December 2020.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on
10 January 2020 (the “Listing Date”). Since the issue of the Shares on the
Listing Date, there has been no change in the issued share capital of the
Company.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s capital structure consists of bank
borrowings and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. There was no material
change in capital structure of the Group during the year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed approximately 1,500
(31 December 2019: 1,500) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Total staff costs for FY2020 amounted to HK$160.8 million (FY2019:
HK$195.4 million). The Group adopts a remuneration policy which
is commensurate with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and employee
related insurance benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to
employees based on individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also provides in-house
and external training programs to its employees. The emoluments of the
Directors are decided by the Board and the remuneration committee of
the Company having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The executive Directors
agreed to waive 30% of their emoluments for a period of three months
from April 2020 to June 2020.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme on 10 December
2019 for the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants of
the scheme, including Directors, full-time employees of and advisers
and consultants to the Group. Details of the share option scheme of the
Company are set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in
the Report of the Directors in this annual report.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has set out its future plans in the prospectus of the Company
dated 27 December 2019 (the “Prospectus”). As part of its future plans,
the Group plans to establish production facilities in South East Asia
region and expand manufacturing platform in the PRC by acquiring
new surface mount technology (“SMT”) lines, upgrading the production
facility at the existing plant and strengthening the research and
development capability for the development and provision of loT related
solutions. The future plans will be funded by a balanced mix of internal
resources, borrowings and proceeds from the global offering.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material event after 31 December 2020.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (“Mr. Chu”), aged 68, is one of the
founders of our Group and was appointed as a Director on 15 January
2019 and re-designated as an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company on 11 March 2019. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He is responsible for the leadership of the
Board, corporate governance promotion, strategic planning, and major
decision-making of our Group.

Mr. Chu is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Prior to the
establishment of our Group in July 2010, Mr. Chu worked for Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Defond Group”)
since June 1990 as the chairman responsible for technical, information
technology and research and development functions and later for the
management and operation of the EMS division. From May 1977 to
early 1990s, Mr. Chu worked as an engineer for a company principally
engaged in the supply of electromechanical motion systems and
solutions.

Mr. Chu graduated from the University of California, Berkeley in the U.S.
with a bachelor of science in mechanical engineering in March 1977.

Mr. Chu is the elder brother of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company). He is also a
director and shareholder of each of Smart Union Global Group Limited
and Smartview Investments Limited, each of which has an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (“Mr. Tsang”), aged 52, is the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEO”) of the Company, and was appointed as a
Director on 15 January 2019 and re-designated as an executive Director
and CEO on 11 March 2019. He is also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and an authorised representative of the Company. He
joined our Group on 30 August 2010 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic planning, business development and major
decision-making of our Group.

Mr. Tsang is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Tsang
joined the Defond Group as chief financial officer in January 2005, where
he was responsible for overseeing the overall finance and accounting
functions, taxation matters and handling banking relationships. He was
promoted to chief operating officer in April 2007, where from August
2010 to December 2015, he was responsible for overseeing the overall
production, operations, human resources functions and supply chain
in relation to both our Group and the Defond Group. Since December
2015, Mr. Tsang has been responsible for the overall management,
strategic planning, business development and major decision-making of
our Group exclusively.
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Prior to joining the Defond Group, from April 1999 to December
2004, Mr. Tsang worked for Digital Lighting Co. Limited, a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing of lighting products, initially as
accounting manager and was later promoted as director of finance and
administration and was responsible for overseeing finance, internal audit,
administration and information system functions.

Mr. Tsang attended Springfield College in the U.S. from January 1989
to May 1990 and then studied at the University of Washington in the
U.S. from October 1990 to December 1992, obtaining a bachelor of
business administration in December 1992. Mr. Tsang has been selected
for membership in Beta Gamma Sigma, the honor society for collegiate
schools of business, and received a certificate issued by the University
of Washington Chapter in May 1992. Mr. Tsang became a certified
public accountant of Washington State Board of Accountancy in August
1995, and became a member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants in 1998.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (“Mr. Chan”), aged 68, was appointed as an
executive Director and designated as the Chief Operating Officer of
the Company on 19 March 2019. Mr. Chan is also a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group on 9 April
2018 as the executive vice president and was later promoted to the
position of chief operation officer on 1 October 2018. He participates in
strategic planning, business development, major decision-making of our
Group and is responsible for developing, establishing, and directing the
execution of the operating policies of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group, from July 2013 to April 2018, Mr. Chan was a
managing director of AstroNova Limited, a member of Astrotech Group.
Astrotech Group is principally engaged in electronics manufacturing and
Mr. Chan was responsible for developing new business, leading new
technology development and coordinating the production process with
the manufacturing plant. In 2005, Mr. Chan joined Computime Limited,
a subsidiary of Computime Group Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 320) principally engaged in
the designing and manufacturing of intelligent electronic controls and
internet of things devices for global markets, where his last position was
president of control solutions (EMS business) before he left in September
2012. From November 2002 to March 2005, Mr. Chan worked for Leica
Geosystems Limited, a surveying measurement solutions provider, as a
vice president of sales and marketing China, responsible for managing
sales, marketing and business development in China. From April 1985
to February 2002, Mr. Chan worked for a technology and engineering
company listed in the U.S., holding a senior position responsible for sales
and marketing of thermal control and safety devices in Asia.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Chan obtained a certificate in supervisory management and
an ordinary certificate in mechanical engineering from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic in Hong Kong (the predecessor of the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University) in March 1974 and November 1975 respectively.
He was awarded a diploma in management studies jointly by Hong
Kong Polytechnic and the Hong Kong Management Association in
August 1982. He attended all courses on campus and completed the
executive program offered by the National University of Singapore and
was awarded a certificate jointly issued by Graduate School of Business
of Stanford University and Faculty of Business Administration of National
University of Singapore in 1990.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (“Ms. Ling”), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. She is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. She
is also the chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant and a retired assurance partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers. She is also an independent non-executive
director of Digital Hollywood Interactive Limited (stock code: 2022),
Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code: 0229) and EVA Precision
Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838), all of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Ling is a council member of The Education University of Hong
Kong and a board member of the Estate Agents Authority. She serves as
a member of the Appeal Board Panel (Town Planning) and the Hospital
Governing Committee of the Hospital Authority. Ms. Ling is a council
member of The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups and an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association. She
previously served as a board member of the Employees Compensation
Assistance Fund Board during 2006 to 2012.

Ms. Ling is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Chartered Professional Accountants, Canada, and Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. She is an accredited general mediator.

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (“Mr. Lee”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.
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Mr. Lee is an executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited,
which is principally engaged in the provision of corporate finance
advisory services and asset management services and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1073), since July 2019. Mr. Lee
is also the chairman of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 666). Mr. Lee first
joined SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited as a manager in July 1992 and
became an executive director in September 2004. He was appointed as
the chairman of the board and ceased to act as the managing director
of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited in March 2009. From November
2007 to March 2015, Mr. Lee was a non-executive chairman of Rotol
Singapore Ltd which was listed on the main board of the Singapore
Exchange Limited until August 2011. He acted as an executive director
of Viva China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032), from June 2010 to June 2013. From
February 2013 to April 2013, he was a non-executive director of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1380). From December 2006 to May
2007, he was the chief executive officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc.
(currently known as Nam Tai Property Inc.), an electronics manufacturing
services provider listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code:
NTP). From March 2004 to February 2006, he was an independent non-
executive director of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited,
and from February 2006 to April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-
executive director. At the time of his directorship, Nam Tai Electronic
& Electrical Products Limited was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2633). From January 2007 to April 2007, he was
also a non-executive director of J.I.C. Technology Company Limited
(currently known as China Renewable Energy Investment Limited), which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 987).

Mr. Lee graduated from The University of East Anglia in England in
1986 with a bachelor of science and obtained a distinction in master of
science from The City University Business School in London in 1988.

Mr. Lee is a responsible officer licensed to conduct type 1 (dealing in
securities) regulated activity, type 4 (advising on securities) regulated
activity, type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated activity and
type 9 (asset management) regulated activity under the SFO.

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in September 1992
and is currently a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Szeto is the
co-founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in
September 1996 and has served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto
& Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan
& Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant
solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled clerk in Messrs.
Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992
and then as an assistant solicitor with the same firm from September
1992 to October 1993.

Mr. Szeto graduated from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong
with a bachelor of laws in December 1989 and was awarded the
postgraduate certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in June 1990. Since June 2017, Mr. Szeto has served as
an independent non-executive director of Evergreen Products Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1962).

Senior Management

Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 43, is the vice president
of finance and management information system of the Company and has
been appointed as the Company’s company secretary since 11 March
2019. He is also an authorised representative of the Company. He is
mainly responsible for the overall finance and accounting functions and
management information system of our Group. He joined our Group on
2 December 2013 as the group finance controller and was responsible
for supervising and managing financial matters.

Mr. Kwong was appointed as the group financial controller of the Defond
Group in December 2013 where he was responsible for supervising and
managing financial matters for both our Group and the Defond Group.
He has been responsible for supervising and managing financial matters
solely for our Group since December 2015.

Prior to joining the Defond Group, from June 2010 to December 2013,
Mr. Kwong was the group financial controller of Valuetronics Holdings
Limited, a company principally engaged in the provision of electronics
manufacturing services, and the shares of which are listed on the main
board of the Singapore Exchange Limited (stock code: BN2), where he
was responsible for the group’s finance and accounting functions, tax
planning, internal controls, management and financial reporting matters
and investor relations. From September 2000 to December 2009, Mr.
Kwong served in the assurance department of PricewaterhouseCoopers
in Hong Kong and his last position was senior audit manager, where
he was responsible for managing audit engagements from planning to
completion for a number of major private and listed companies in Hong
Kong and the PRC.
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Mr. Kwong graduated from the City University of Hong Kong in Hong
Kong with a bachelor of business administration in accountancy in
November 2000. He has been a fellow member of the Association
of Charted Certified Accountants since November 2010 and a fellow
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
November 2011.

Mr. Tsang Keung, aged 53, is the vice president of client base
management of our Group. He is mainly responsible for identifying and
developing new sales opportunities, assessing, formulating and executing
sales strategy for our Group. He joined our Group on 20 August 2018.

Before working with us, Mr. Tsang Keung worked for Computime
Limited, a subsidiary of Computime Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 320) principally
engaged in designing and manufacturing intelligent electronic controls
and internet of things devices for global markets, from November 2004
to August 2018. He was the marketing director when he joined the
company and in March 2008, he was promoted to the general manager
responsible for managing the overall business unit responsible for global
marquee account management, product and pricing strategy. Mr. Tsang
Keung worked as a Asia Pacific marketing manager for Ridge Tool Ltd
of Emerson Electric from January 1997 to January 2001, and Asia Pacific
marketing director for Liebert Asia Limited (currently known as Emerson
Network Power (Hong Kong) Limited) from February 2001 to March
2004, responsible for identifying market synergies, developing regional
marketing infrastructure and common marketing collateral and messages,
supporting regional events, researching customer databases and creating
e-business platforms and functional CRM tools for the region. In April
1995, Mr. Tsang Keung joined Bong Art International Ltd., a company
authorised by 3M Hong Kong Limited to convert 3M brand products for
its customers as a manager/partner and was responsible for management,
new product design and development. He left the company in December
1997. During August 1989 to March 1995, Mr. Tsang Keung worked
for 3M Hong Kong Limited, a subsidiary of a multinational company
principally engages in manufacturing consumer and industrial products
as a division supervisor of the China region, responsible for division
business management, product portfolio management and pricing
strategy.

Mr. Tsang Keung graduated from University of East Asia in Macau (the
predecessor of the University of Macau) with a bachelor of business
administration in July 1989. He also obtained a master of business
administration, which is a distance learning part-time programme, from
the Open University of Hong Kong in June 2000.
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Mr. Tsang Keung was awarded a diploma in marketing by the Chartered
Institute of Marketing in December 1994. He is also a certified
professional marketer (Asia Pacific) conferred by the board of the
directors of the Asia Pacific Marketing Federation in August 1998.

Ms. Wong Ching (“Ms. Wong”), aged 46, was appointed as the vice
president of supply base management of our Group on 1 January 2018.
She is mainly responsible for overseeing the strategic sourcing and
procurement processes of our Group. She joined our Group on 29 July
2010 and was responsible for purchasing and sourcing functions.

Ms. Wong joined Defond Electrical Industries Limited (“DEIL”) as the
material manager in March 2001 and was responsible for the strategic
sourcing for electronic components, leading the team for price and
terms negotiation, driving the alternative sourcing program to increase
the material cost competitiveness, developing the supplier partnerships
and managing vendor performance. She was later promoted to senior
purchasing manager in June 2008, and was responsible for overseeing
and establishing sourcing strategy, driving the material cost reduction
conducting price and contract negotiation, supplier development and
performance management. She was promoted to the head of corporate
sourcing in September 2012. She worked for Defond Holdings (H.K.)
Co. Limited from December 2015 to May 2016 as the head of corporate
sourcing. From July 2010 to May 2016, she was responsible for
overseeing the strategic sourcing for both our Group and the Defond
Group. Since May 2016, she has been responsible for overseeing
sourcing and procurement solely for our Group.

Prior to joining DEIL in March 2001, Ms. Wong worked as a purchasing
officer in Means Come Limited, an electronic components distributor
from 1996 to 2000, responsible for purchasing electronic components.

Ms. Wong obtained a diploma in management studies from the School
of Professional and Continuing Education of the University of Hong
Kong in Hong Kong in December 2001 and obtained a bachelor of
arts in business studies from the University of Greenwich in the United
Kingdom in March 2016 where she attended the course in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong Kin Man (“Mr. Wong”), aged 62, joined our Group on 13
December 2010 as the operations director of our Group. He is mainly
responsible for developing and improving manufacture processes
and plans. Mr. Wong has served as a director of Dongguan Wise Ally
Industrial Co., Ltd* (=g IERE HE R A 7)) since 13 December 2010.
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Prior to joining our Group, from May 2007 to December 2010, Mr.
Wong worked for DEIL as the operations manager and was later
promoted to a position of senior operations manager. Mr. Wong was
employed by Kam Yuen (Group) International Limited, a manufacturer of
metal parts, from August 2000 to March 2007 as senior plant manager,
and he was responsible for exploring new business opportunities,
overseeing company-side quality improvement and establishing new
business units and factories. From September 1994 to December 1998,
Mr. Wong worked for IDT Technology Limited, a company principally
engages in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks, electronic
thermometers, barometers and weather stations, as assistant quality
assurance manager, quality assurance manager, acting factory manager
and factory manager respectively, responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of the SMT factory and setting up a new factory for bonding
operations, development of local staff and productivity enhancement.
In July 1993, Mr. Wong joined a company principally engages in the
design and manufacturing of audio products, namely Hi Tech Precision
Products Limited, as quality control manager, responsible for setting up
efficient quality control systems based on ISO 9000 requirement and
training staff members responsible for quality control to handle quality
matter independently. He left the company in June 1994. From March
1988 to June 1993, Mr, Wong worked for Team Concepts Manufacturing
Limited, a company principally engages in manufacturing telephone and
answering machines, as quality assurance supervisor, incoming quality
control supervisor and assistant quality assurance manager respectively,
and he was responsible for overseeing quality management and the
development and implementation of ISO 9000 quality system. From
October 1983 to February 1988, Mr. Wong worked for Eastern Frontier
Company Ltd, a company principally engages in manufacturing power
transformers and power adaptors, as a quality control supervisor, and he
was responsible for quality management, developing quality standards
and quality inspection.

Mr. Wong was awarded the ordinary certificate in textile technology and
the higher certificate in textile technology by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(the predecessor of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November
1978 and November 1980 respectively.

Mr. Chan Wai Ho, aged 51, joined our Group on 6 April 2020 as general
manager of our Group. He is responsible for overseeing production
operation of our Group.
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Mr. Chan Wai Ho has over 27 years’ experience in various multinational
companies in EMS and manufacturing industry. Before joining our Group,
from January 2018 to April 2020, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for an EMS
company as general manager and was promoted to the position of vice
president of operations, with the responsibility of formulating overall
strategy and establishing policies to ensure production runs smoothly
and efficiently. Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for Meter Technology Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of The Hong Kong & China Gas Company
Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3), principally engaged in design and manufacturing of utility gas
flow meter with micro electro mechanical system (MEMS) technology
for China market, from November 2012 to January 2018, where he was
the assistant general manager of operation, responsible for gas meter
production, gas flow senor design enhancement and improvement,
quality improvement, metrology development and manufacturing process
development.

During September 2010 to November 2012, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked
as the head of manufacturing of IDT Technology Limited, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 167),
principally engages in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks,
electronic thermometers, barometers and weather stations, where he was
responsible for managing the affairs of the manufacturing operations.

From April 2008 to September 2010, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for
Rohm and Haas Electronic Material Dongguan Limited, a company
principally engages in design and manufacturing of specialty chemical
for print circuit board production use, as a deputy general manager and
was responsible for daily operation, including supply chain management
team and quality & analytical laboratory.

Mr. Chan Wai Ho obtained a Post Certification in Manufacturing System
Engineering from University of Warwick in United Kingdom in July 1999
where he attended the course in Hong Kong and obtained a bachelor of
engineering in computer aided engineering from Liverpool John Moores
University in United Kingdom in July 1993.
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Mr. Lee Conrad, aged 49, joined our Group on 1 March 2020, as the
Vice President of Business Development. He is responsible for identifying
and establishing new market and sales distribution channels, developing
innovative and impactful products and solutions, and formulating
digital marketing strategies to outreach and collaborate with corporate
customers, distributors and partners for our Group.

Before working with us, Mr. Lee Conrad worked for Targus Asia Pacific
Limited, a company principally engages in manufacturing and distributing
mobile and computer peripherals and accessories, as vice president
of sales and marketing, where he was responsible for developing new
sales channels and establishing key partnerships with distributors and
retailers from March 2018 to April 2019. From December 2013 to March
2018, Mr. Lee Conrad was the director of Radcon Consulting Limited,
a partnership business owned by Mr. Lee providing full suite of design,
engineering, manufacturing and go-to-market strategies and services,
responsible for developing smart health and innovative loT products
to support the growth of business. From July 2011 to November 2013,
he worked as a chief commercial officer for 3PM China Manufacturing
Limited, responsible for driving their core manufacturing businesses and
exploring new ventures and investments. He worked in Belton Group,
a company principally engages in providing a vertically integrated
“one-stop-shop” solution with full turnkey design and manufacturing
services, as the general manager of business development, responsible
for identifying strategic partners, creating manufacturing cost models
for production and developing strategic investment opportunities, from
January 2009 to July 2011. From November 2000 to January 2009, he
was the business development director for Asia Pacific region in Jabil
Circuit China Limited and Flextronics Manufacturing (H.K.) Ltd., both
are two of the world’s largest EMS providers, delivering comprehensive
design, manufacturing and aftermarket services for a wide array of
industries, where he was responsible for formulating and winning
business sales and maintaining high level relationships with customers.

Mr. Lee Conrad graduated from University College of London with a
bachelor of science in Physics with Electronics and Computing in August
1993 and obtained a master of science in Business System Analysis and
Design from City University London in April 1996.

*  for identification purpose only
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The Board is pleased to present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 15 January 2019 and was registered as
a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) on 14 March 2019. The Shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 10 January 2020.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 10 January 2020 by way of global offering and the net
proceeds raised from the global offering, after deducting the underwriting
fees and other related listing expenses, amounted to approximately
HK$74.0 million. As of the date of this annual report, the Company does
not anticipate any change on its plan on the use of proceeds as stated in
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2020, the net proceeds had been utilised and

unutilised as follows:

ERBA
RERFRE
RIRHY
FERRREE
Expected
FR8RIE timeline of
BEAR full utilisation
B RERIERZR Proposed 28A KB  of the unutilised
Intended use of proceeds use of proceeds Utilised Unutilised proceeds
BERER BEER BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

BB RA RN BRSNS T B IE IR

Increasing production capacity by expanding 26.1 - 26.1  A2023FEK
manufacturing platform in South East Asia region (MEE1)
and the PRC By the end of

2023 (Note 1)

BREETHELRBARTERERZEERE
A ERR IR A AR R M BE

Enhancing production efficiency and capability by 19.4 - 19.4  H20234FEK
acquiring new machinery and equipment and (HHsE1)
upgrading the production facility at our existing By the end of
production plant in Dongguan 2023 (Note 1)

hsRFAEE M IR MR A AR RR AR R T IRV B BE )

Strengthening research capability for the 4.0 (0.1) 3.9 2022FK
development and provision of loT related By the end of
solutions 2022

ISR AL S K BUM i) 2 8K BE

Increasing marketing efforts in North America and 4.3 - 43 F2022FEK
Europe By the end of

2022

MRBLEIIT R R B AP E R R

Enhancing manufacturing execution system and 2.5 (0.4) 2.1 JR2022F K
information technology infrastructure By the end of

2022

BIE —FEAFRITER

Repayment of a capital expenditure bank loan 10.8 (10.8) -

BRI —REEESD

Our general working capital 6.9 (6.9) -

74.0 (18.2) 55.8
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Note 1: Due to the border controls, travel restrictions and disruptions in supply
chain caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the unutlised proceeds of these
expansion plans and enhancement projects are expected to be utilised by
the end of 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of electronic products.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
104.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$10.0
million, representing HK$0.005 per ordinary Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”), for the year ended 31 December 2020. Subject to
the approval by the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM, the Proposed Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on or before Wednesday, 23 June 2021
to the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on Tuesday, 8 June 2021.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2021 AGM is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 1 June 2021. For
determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, the
register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, 27
May 2021 to Tuesday, 1 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered. In
order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, unregistered
holder(s) of share(s) of the Company should ensure that all share transfer
document(s) accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 26 May 2021.
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For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend (subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2021 AGM), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 7 June 2021
to Tuesday, 8 June 2021, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holder(s) of share(s) of
the Company should ensure that all transfer document(s) accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2020
including an analysis of the Group’s performance using key financial
performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Company, important events affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of FY2020, and a discussion on the Group's future business
development are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 12. These
discussions form part of this Report of the Directors. Other than the
events set out in other parts of this annual report, no other significant
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility through
minimizing the impacts to the community and environment while
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. More details regarding
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are provided in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 64 to 95.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year under review, the
Group has complied in material respect with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Company. Further details regarding the Group’s compliance with
the applicable laws relating to the environmental and social aspects
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 64 to 95 of this annual report.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the valuable assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to its employees and emphasize the personal development
of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. Despite the challenging business conditions, the Group aims
to continue providing products and services that meet or exceed its
customers’ requirement or expectation for quality, reliability and value.
In accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build long term
and mutually beneficial relationships with its suppliers, ensuring reliable
delivery to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.

DONATIONS
The Group did not make any charitable donation during the year.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There is no material event after 31 December 2020.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2020 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARES ISSUED

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent series of reorganisation
arrangements, which are more particularly described in the subsection
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the
Prospectus.

The Company had 1,000,000 issued Shares immediately before
the capitalisation issue and the global offering. On 10 January
2020, immediately before the global offering, the Company issued
1,499,000,000 new Shares to the Shareholders whose name appeared
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on a
date prior to the global offering by way of capitalisation of an amount of
HK$14,990,000 standing in the share premium account of the Company
credited as a result of the global offering. On 10 January 2020, pursuant
to the global offering, the Company issued 500,000,000 new Shares at
HK$0.25 each. The net proceeds received by the Company from the
global offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and other related
listing expenses), amounted to approximately HK$74.0 million. Details
of the global offering were disclosed in the Prospectus. Immediately
upon completion of the global offering and as at the date of this report,
the total number of issued shares of the Company is 2,000,000,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, distributable reserves of the Company is
HK$80,328,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Details of the Company’s dividend policy are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2020
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The bank borrowings were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantee together with certain covenants including the requirement that
Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson shall
jointly maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 50% of the shareholding
of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the previous financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-Year
Financial Summary” in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreements, save for the share option scheme
of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the period from
the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting
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Pursuant to Article 109 of the Articles of Association, Ms. Ling Imma Kit
Sum and Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren shall retire from office by rotation at
the 2021 AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2021 AGM.

All of them will offer themselves for re-election at the 2021 AGM. Details
of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2021 AGM are set out in the
circular to Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a director service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date (subject to termination in certain circumstances as
stipulated in the relevant director service agreement).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letter of appointment).

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 20217 AGM
has a service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed below and
the related party transactions disclosed in note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, other related party transactions disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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Continuing Connected Transactions — Master Purchase
Agreement

On 19 December 2019, Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“HK Wise Ally”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and DEIL, which
is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited
liability and beneficially held as to 50% by Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond
and as to 50% by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (younger brother of Mr.
Chu Wai Hang Raymond), each being a controlling Shareholder and
a connected person of the Company, entered into a master purchase
agreement (the “Master Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
HK Wise Ally and its subsidiary agreed to purchase, and DEIL and its
subsidiaries (“DEIL Group”) agreed to supply and/or manufacture a
variety of switches (the “Products”) to the Group for a term commencing
on the Listing Date until 31 December 2022. As such, DEIL is an associate
of the connected persons of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c)
of the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Master Purchase Agreement, DEIL Group agreed to
supply the Products to the Group at a price which shall be determined
on arm’s length negotiations based on the prevailing market prices for the
supply of similar Products. The parties agreed that each purchase order
(“Order”) placed by the Group with DEIL Group for the purchase of the
Products shall constitute a separate legally binding contract between
DEIL Group and the Group upon acceptance by DEIL Group. The terms
and conditions of the Master Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be
incorporated into each Order and form part thereof. The parties further
agreed that prevailing market price of Products shall be (i) the lower
of the quoted prices for such Products of comparable quality ordered
in similar quantities obtained by the Group from no less than two
independent third parties; or (ii) in the event that the Group is not able
to obtain at least two quotes from independent third parties, determined
on terms no less favourable than terms available to independent third
parties for the purchase of such Products of comparable quality in similar
quantities from DEIL Group.

The annual caps for each of the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 in respect of the maximum purchase
price payable by our Group to DEIL Group in respect of the purchase of
the Products are HK$4.0 million, HK$4.0 million and HK$4.0 million,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group purchased the
Products from DEIL Group in an amount of HK$2.2 million. Details
of the transactions with DEIL Group are set out in note 30(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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The transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement
constitute non-fully exempt continuing connected transactions which
are exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements but subject to reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Stock Exchange
has granted to the Company a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirements of the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
fully exempt continuing connected transactions.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

e in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
e on normal commercial terms or better; and

e according to the agreement governing the terms that are fair and
reasonable in the interests of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company’s auditor has issued its unqualified report containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed on pages 31 to 32 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter T4A of the Listing Rules
regarding the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s businesses to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or
any of its holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2020.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty or
supposed duty in his/her respective offices or trusts.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. As
at the date of this annual report, the permitted indemnity provision is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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Capacity/Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) Long position in the Shares

EARD B REN
BHOED
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

BEBERHE
Number of
ordinary Shares

REBEERE
Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond

MH5E 240,000,000 A% A% 9 LA Smart Union Global
Group Limited ( [ Smart Union | ) #) & %
E &0 0 M Smart Union ) & &B 2 3 17 BX 15
MABESLESLEHE © 1,020,000,000
f% A% 17 LA Smartview Investments Limited
(['Smartview |) KB FE & + M Smartview
50%B BTN BAZELEERE - RIFE
FREE KD - REBEEWR AR Smart
Union K& Smartview 55 #) & 0% () 7 1 5 1
2% o
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A S

Interest in controlled corporations

1,260,000,000 63.0%
(P &E)

(Note)

Note: 240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”), all the issued shares of which
are wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond. 1,020,000,000
of the Shares are registered in the name of Smartview Investments
Limited (“Smartview”), 50% of the issued shares of which are owned
by Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond. Under the SFO, Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Smart
Union and Smartview.
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(2) Long position in the shares of associated corporations

1 AR R L B AR R Y
BHOBEDL
Approximate
percentage of

HEEE AR shareholding
Name of B REmtE REE interest in
EEHE associated Capacity/Nature fE=ER Number the associated
Name of Director corporation of interest Class of interest  of share(s) corporation
KEEBLEE Smartview BB EA T
Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond Smartview Beneficial owner Ordinary 1 50.0%
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BARFERAITREEI KRB HEAATHE
RARAFRIAKEBESEAFERRHE
BB AEBRBARRREMEMEABEY
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(BEBRAREEETERABRIN RIGH X8
RN TP EELENRERES REEKREE
336N A RATFBENE LM RRIEES L
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2020, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had interests in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:
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ROEFRE

EEHR

Name of substantial Shareholder

Long position in the Shares

5 EEME

Capacity/Nature of interest

EBRRHE
Number of
ordinary Shares

EARRTREN
BYBEI
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

Smartview
Smartview

Smart Union
Smart Union

Grandview Group Holdings Limited

([ Grandview])

Grandview Group Holdings Limited

(“Grandview”)

REERE

Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson

EEELLE

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina

RELL

Ms. Ng Ching Annetta

SHR RS
Mr. Hui Wai Lun

FEE 24
Ms. Choi Shun Hi
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BN e N
B

Beneficial interest

BN e N
B

Beneficial interest

N1

gL

B

Beneficial interest

LB AE S

Interest in controlled corporations

FoiBtE

Interest of spouse

FoiBtEa

Interest of spouse

BN e N
gy S

Beneficial interest

AoiBtE

Interest of spouse

1,020,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

1,260,000,000
(BF&ET)
(Note 1)

1,260,000,000
(FF5E2)
(Note 2)

1,260,000,000
(FF5E3)
(Note 3)

120,000,000

120,000,000
(Mf7E4)
(Note 4)

51.0%

12.0%

12.0%

63.0%

63.0%

63.0%

6.0%

6.0%
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Notes:

(1) 240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Grandview, the
entire share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong
Wilson (the younger brother of Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond). 1,020,000,000
of the Shares are registered in the name of Smartview, 50% of the share
capital of which is owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Under the SFO,
Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held
by Grandview and Smartview.

(2) Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond.
Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is deemed to be interested in the same number of
Shares in which Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond is interested by virtue of the
SFO.

(3)  Ms. Ng Ching Annetta is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Ms. Ng
Ching Annetta is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(4)  Ms. Choi Shun Hi is the spouse of Mr. Hui Wai Lun. Ms. Choi Shun Hi is
deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in which Mr. Hui Wai
Lun is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had interests
in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the then Shareholders
passed on 10 December 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). No share option
has been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since
the Adoption Date and up to the date of this report.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b)
below) who have contributed and will contribute to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

(b) Participants
The “Eligible Participants” are:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of our Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group, the assessment
criteria of which are:

e contribution to the development and performance of the
Group;

e quality of work performed for the Group;

e initiative and commitment in performing his/her duties; and

e length of service or contribution to the Group.

(c) Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
200,000,000 Shares (the “Limit”) (representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report). The
Board may renew the Limit subject to approval of the Shareholders
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules and
the Share Option Scheme but the Limit must not exceed 30% of the
issued Shares from time to time.

(d) Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options and Shares which were the
subject of options which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company but subsequently canceled) under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% of the issued shares of the Company should be
subject to approval of the Shareholders and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme.
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Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which
must be achieved before the option can be exercised, except that
no option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the
payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$1.0 as consideration for the
grant of an option must be paid by the grantee to the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date, as defined in the Share Option
Scheme, which is a date not later than 30 days after the date of
grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities (“Business Day”);

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business

Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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(h) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from 10 January 2020 up to and including 9
January 2030.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2020 and the date of this annual report, no share
options had been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. As a result, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme as of the date of this annual report was
200,000,000, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as
of the date of this annual report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and in the consolidated financial
statements, no controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has
any material contract (including material contract for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries) with the Company or
its subsidiaries during the year under review.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year ended 31 December
2020 attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer: 18.8% of the Group’s total sales
- five largest customers combined: 62.5% of the Group’s total sales

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 6.2% of the Group's total purchases
— five largest suppliers combined: 24.1% of the Group’s total
purchases

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (who to
the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in the above major
customers and suppliers.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 8(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors
confirming that other than the business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors was considered to have any interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company
and/or the Group.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (chairperson of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float since the Listing Date and up to the date of this
report.

AUDITOR

The Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on 10 January 2020
and there has been no change in auditor since then. The consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 were audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will expire upon the
conclusion of the 2021 AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2021 AGM.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group
throughout the year.

By Order of the Board

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 March 2021
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has adopted a set of policies and procedures based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and exercise
proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, throughout the period from the date of
listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board on 10 January 2020
to the date of this report, the Company has complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code.

The Company has also put in place certain recommended best practices
as set out in the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report.
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The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.

Board Composition

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

The biographical information of the Directors is set out in the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages 13 to 22 of this

annual report.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.
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Board Meetings and Directors” Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board held five meetings.
A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board
meetings held during the year is set out below:
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BRAEFASEAE Mr. Chan Chi Ming 5/5
RO Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 5/5
FEMEE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 5/5
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MEHESESSEIN 0 FHE2020F12831HIE  Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting
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with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by Mr.
Chu Wai Hang Raymond and Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the Company’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



TEERRES

Corporate Governance Report

ZERERES

EREVETAZTRIRXFEA4TIRETH - JEH
TEFRARELEN  XERXEE MR
RXFEAA2GETR - PIEBRZTAEMBERRE
ZEZEANBZERBERARRAS EHRRE
T MEBRER(BRBEAHZESR ) EE=
FROBEEET R -

REARFABERAR  REERRBFX
L BER=ZN0ZEFT(WMESARYIF=
FIE=EH - ARKEAETDPR=02—
ZE)RWERE  ESER(BREFEEHZ
ER)ERIE-FHERIREE R K
NEMEEERARTEE  EAIEHEFEEZ
THRMRSERNES  HERKEZHES
FEROARRFE - ERRARERIELENER
AReLEE MEAEEESZEEERKE
FEVMRENNES  HIHEZARF NE
BRBFEAGRIEWTEEREEET -

BHTER(CREBELSE GRHBELERRE
L) ERARRAFIVESERSHE - B £
mHEEASH=F - E—HHABEREBRS
— BB =EANE BN RBATKIA
AR LB E R e o

BRI TER(RRLOKL FEREE
RAESERE) ERARARBRILERER - B
EHABRESHM=F  AREN—SRs—h
BHADR=EANSEEMTIALL -

BFERERERAR
20204F 3

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 states that all directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting whereas any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors, Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond, Mr.
Tsang Ming Chit Stanley and Mr. Chan Chi Ming, has entered into
a director service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from the Listing Date. Either party may at any time
terminate the director service agreement by giving to the other party
three months’ written notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Ling Imma Kit
Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the Group’s
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control; to
approve the strategic plans; and to appoint directors of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment and any necessary briefing
and professional development to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group, and is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Group's
business and governance policies.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company organised
training sessions conducted by legal advisers for all Directors. The
training sessions covered a wide range of relevant topics including
directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory updates. In addition, relevant reading materials including
compliance manual, legal and regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2020 have been provided to the Company and are summarized as
follows:

23
e
= Type of
Directors Training Nee
HITES Executive Directors
ANB
ElExE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond Aand B
ANB
BB AL Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley Aand B
ANB
BRAZERSEAE Mr. Chan Chi Ming A and B
BUFHTES Independent non-executive Directors
ANB
BB Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum A and B
ANB
FEMILLE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren Aand B
ANB
AITERRESE A Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting Aand B
FEE - Notes:
SRR Types of training
A Z2INEFIERE - BREETENE®R  MEE 3% A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,
KEBI conferences and workshops

B: BIEMBRREAA - WA - BT - MESRARRE T
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B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant
publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairperson and members of each Board committee is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren
and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum is the chairperson of
the Audit Committee. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules and none of the
committee members is a former partner of or has any financial interest in
the Company’s existing external auditor within two years before his/her
appointment as a member of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit, relationship
with the external auditor, and arrangements to enable the employees
of the Company and those who have dealings with the Company to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties (including
financial reporting and internal control) in the Company.
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The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2020 to review annual financial results and report in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2019, interim financial results and
report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2020, significant
issues on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and internal audit function, re-appointment of external auditor, audit
planning, engagement of non-audit services, continuing connected
transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditor twice without the
presence of the executive Directors.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as

follows:
EREEBRENH S HERER
Name of Members of the Audit Committee Attendance
BRLEE Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 2/2
TEMGEE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 2/2
RIESRELEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 2/2
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Szeto Yuk Ting, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Tsang Ming Chit
Stanley, executive Director. Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration proposals of the executive Directors, independent
non-executive Directors and senior management and the remuneration
policy and structure of all Directors and senior management.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the remuneration of the senior
management by band is set out below:

AE
HENEE Number of
Remuneration band persons
1,000,001 7C21,500,000/5 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 8
1,500,001 7T 22,000,000/5 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
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Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2020 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

FMEEEREHB HEER

Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee Attendance

BT RAE Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley 11

BERLE T Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 11

FEMTE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 1/1

AITERRIESEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 1/1
REZE® Nomination Committee
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The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Lee Wa Lun Warren, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond,
executive Director. Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Company’s Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company and to consider and recommend to the Board on
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company. The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate
balance of diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not
set any measurable objective implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

REZESRENA HEER
Name of Members of the Nomination Committee Attendance
KEBEXE Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond 1/1
EBRLE L Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 11
TEMEE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 1/1
AITERRESE 4 Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 1/1
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to talent,
skills, professional experience, independence and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for appointment as Directors will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to talent, skills,
professional experience, independence and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Nomination Committee
considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition can be summarised
by the following main diversity perspective:

EEAY
Number of
Directors
4 71 Gender
z Female
ES Male 5
Eik 3 Ethnicity
Fh Chinese 5
nex Canadian
FiR Age
512605% 51-60 3
612705% 61-70 3
BR#5 £ IR Length of Service
1234F 1-3 years 6
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Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.
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The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

e Skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the operations of the
Company;

e Commitment in respect of available time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;

* Various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

¢ Independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

e Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended 31 December 2020, there was no
change in the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will also review at least annually the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and diversity
of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. A manual setting
out various corporate governance policies and procedures has been
adopted by the Company, which applies to assist the Board and the top
management to better perform their corporate governance duties to the
Group and delegate the responsibilities to the Board committees.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including sales and
receivables, procurements and payments, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems include
a defined management structure with limits of authority. Appropriate
policies and control procedures have been designed, implemented
and reviewed to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal; established system, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks that may impact the
Company’s performance are appropriately identified and managed. Such
procedures are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems. Any significant
internal audit issues identified and associated remedial actions are
followed up for proper implementation, and the progress is reported to
the Audit Committee periodically.
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The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year under review, the Company engaged an external
independent consultant, BT Corporate Governance Limited, to conduct a
review on the internal control system of the Group. The annual internal
control review of the Group covered major activities and material
controls (including operational, financial and compliance) of the Group's
business. A report on the result of assessment and recommendations was
provided by the external independent consultant to the Audit Committee.
The Group took measures to implement the recommendations made by
the external independent consultant on the internal control system.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2020, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

The Company has adopted a Whistle-blowing Policy to facilitate
employees of the Group to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in the practices and procedures, including financial
reporting, internal control and other matters, in their workplace.
It enables employees to report matters that may constitute (i) non-
compliance to laws or regulations; (ii) malpractice, impropriety or fraud
relating to internal controls, accounting, auditing and financial matters;
(iii) endangerment of the health and safety of an individual; (iv) damage
caused to the environment; (v) improper conduct or unethical behaviour
likely to prejudice the standing of the Company; and (vi) deliberate
concealment of any of the above.

The Company has developed its Inside Information Policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, officers and relevant employees of the
Group in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. The Inside Information Policy
ensures that potentially price sensitive or inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board
to decide the need for timely disclosure in order to ensure compliance
with Part XIVA of the SFO.
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The Company has also adopted a Code of Business Conduct Policy to
ensure that the Group conducts its business activities and transactions
with honesty and integrity, and in accordance with moral, ethical
and legal standards of the countries in which the Group conducts its
business. This policy applies to the Company’s business worldwide and
to all employees of the Group (unless the subsidiary(ies) of the Company
has(have) its(their) own code of business conduct) and covers the
following aspects:

Obligations towards the Group

e Personal conduct

e Employment practices

e Relations with customers

e Relations with suppliers and contractors
e Responsibilities to shareholders

e Responsibilities to the community

*  Monitoring of compliance and means of enforcement

Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling Shareholders, namely Smartview, Smart Union,
Grandview, Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong
Wilson, has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company on 20 December 2019 (the “Deed”), details of which have
been set out in the Prospectus.

The Company has received written declaration from each controlling
Shareholder in respect of his/its and/or his/its close associates’
compliance with the terms of the Deed during the period from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2020. The independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the compliance with the Deed and enforcement of
the terms of the Deed by the controlling Shareholders and confirmed that
the controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 96 to 103 of this
annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

e ERER
Fees Paid/
Payable

RER TS Audit services 1,825,000/ 7T
HK$1,825,000
IERZERTS Non-audit services
— BB A S ARRTS — Tax compliance and advisory services 460,000/ 7T
HK$460,000
2,285,000/ 7T
HK$2,285,000
NEMWE COMPANY SECRETARY
B AE  BMBEREBERRSIEE - Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit, vice president of finance and management

H2019F3 A11 BREZTAKRRRZ AR
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information system, has been appointed as the Company’s company
secretary with effect from 11 March 2019. Please refer to the section
headed “Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for his
biographical information.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Kwong has undertaken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Company’s company secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/
herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Any Shareholder who wishes to put forward proposals at a general
meeting of the Company shall submit such proposals to the Board in
writing for the Board’s consideration either via mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong or via email not less than 15
business days prior to the date of the general meeting. The mail address
and email address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details”
below.
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Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders shall direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited and the contact details are
set out as follows:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

For enquiries about corporate governance or other matters to be brought
to the attention of the Board, Shareholders shall send their written
enquiries to the Company either via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or via email. The mail address and email
address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details” below.

Contact Details

Shareholders can send their proposals and enquiries as mentioned above
to the Company as follows:

Address: Units 3203-3207, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,

Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2505 1283

Email: ir@wiseally.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders” information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company will normally not deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.wiseally.com.hk where up-to-date information and updates on
the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

The Company has adopted an amended and restated Memorandum and
Articles of Association by a special resolution passed on 10 December
2019, with the amended and restated Memorandum of Association taking
effect from 10 December 2019 and the amended and restated Articles
of Association taking effect from the Listing Date. An up-to-date version
of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association is available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Save as
disclosed above, there was no change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to the Shareholders’ approval. The Board currently intends to recommend
dividend no less than 30% of the net profit available for distribution to
the Shareholders beginning from the financial year ended 31 December
2020.
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OVERVIEW OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (THE “ESG REPORT”)

Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and its

subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”,
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG Report”).

we” or “us”) hereby presents its

REPORTING SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report covers the period from 1 January to 31 December 2020
(the “Reporting Period”), which is consistent with the financial year
covered by the 2020 Annual Report of the Group.

Unless otherwise specified, the scope of the ESG Report covers all
subsidiaries listed in our financial statements during the Reporting Period,
which include the businesses and offices in Hong Kong and Dongguan
production plant in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

PREPARATION BASIS OF THE ESG REPORT

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance (the “ESG”) Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 27
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
complies with all provisions of “Mandatory Disclosure” and “Comply or
Explain”, as well as the principles of materiality, quantitative, balance
and consistency. In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the
international standards and emission factors specified in the guidance
materials on ESG issued by the Stock Exchange for computing the
relevant Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”),' and there is no change
from previous year in the way the ESG Report has been prepared. The
application of materiality is detailed in the subsection headed “ESG
Management — Materiality Assessment”.

SOURCE OF DATA AND RELIABILITY STATEMENT

The information disclosed in the ESG Report is from the Group’s internal
documents, statistical reports and relevant public materials. The Group
undertakes that the ESG Report does not contain any false information,
misleading statement or material omission, and takes responsibilities for
the contents hereof as to the authenticity, accuracy and completeness.

1 How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPlIs, https://www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/
rules-and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/
how-to-prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis
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CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The ESG Report was approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) on 29 March 2021 upon confirmation by the management
of the Company. The ESG Report is prepared in both Chinese and
English. In case of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English
versions of the ESG Report, the English version shall prevail.

ESG MANAGEMENT
Statement of the Board

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group acknowledges that quality
management of environmental and societal process and activities is of
great importance to promote sustainable economic growth. The ESG
Report summarizes the strategy, practice and vision of the Group in
respect of the issues related to ESG, and conveys a clear message of the
Group's devotion for sustainability. To address the global concern about
climate change that affects not only the environmental systems but also
our daily lives, the Group has considered the climate-related issues
and incorporated them into its risk management system to enhance its
resilience and adaptive capacity to potential climate change impacts. All
potential risks that may have impact on the Group’s businesses will be
covered and evaluated in the annual enterprise risk assessment.

The Group has established a governance structure to enhance its
management of ESG issues. The Board has an overall responsibility for
overseeing the Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities, establishing
and adopting the ESG-related strategies and targets of the Group,
reviewing the Group’s performance annually against the ESG-related
targets, and revising the ESG-related strategies as appropriate if significant
variance from the ESG-related target is identified. The Group has set
up an ESG Working Group which comprises of members from middle
to senior management and supports the Board in implementing ESG-
related strategies and targets, conducting materiality assessments of ESG
issues and, and promoting the implementation of measures in relation
to ESG issues identified. By the delegation of authority of the Board,
the ESG Working Group assists in collecting ESG data from different
functional departments of the Group, monitoring the implementation of
the measures in relation to ESG issues identified, and investigating any
deviations from the ESG-related strategies and targets and liaising with
relevant functional departments of the Group to take prompt rectification
actions in relation to such deviations.
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EEeBEEREMTENNBIZHRFAERE  Based on the set goals and targets, the Board will continue to review
BRARE HEREARTEMER  LAESE  the Group’s progress in relation to ESG issues in order to build a more
AEHEERNEBT AREH W KPEEZH  sustainable business and bring greater benefits for the society as a whole.
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ERLRE Governance Structure

BiE -2 o B HEeREATEIVEAEREHHESSTEREREE 1He

25 3 /I MEREH -
S/R IﬂE M e The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in
ESG Workmg GI‘OUp managing and monitoring the ESG matters on a daily basis.

BB BEZRFY o BREHFIBERITERERAERRERBERER
Functional Department ¢ Functional departments are responsible for the execution of implemented
measures to achieve the set strategies and targets.
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Areas of ESG Concern

Identification of and Engagement with Stakeholders

In the course of its operation, the Group continues to pay attention to
the major concerns of its stakeholders. Through comprehensive and
transparent engagement with its stakeholders, the Group continues to
improve its sustainable development strategies and plans based on the
opinions of its stakeholders. Through addressing the expectations and
needs of its stakeholders, the Group aims to consolidate mutual trust and
develop cooperative relationships with its stakeholders, and to create a
future of sustainable economic growth, environmental friendliness and
social development.

The major ESG concerns of its stakeholders and the means through
which the Group engages with such stakeholders are detailed below:

285K

Means of Engagement

B P o BT EMARAG R o B
o R RERHAE o EVIRFHEE K
o ARBPURAE -
Stock Exchange e Compliance with the Listing Rules; and ¢ Meetings;
e Timely and accurate announcements. e Training and seminars; and
e Company’s website and announcements.
B R EEE WS o ZEBAM .

o MREMB K

o [FEEWNBEEERHEXR -

Government and regulatory e
authorities J

Operational compliance; J
Tax payment as legally required; and J

Annual reviewal process; and
Company’s website and announcements.

e Disclosure of information and

submission of materials.
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Means of Engagement

wEE o EXBEHEBENRZ o BEAE:
o BAMBEER: o HMBHMERAE K
o FEARN N o ARATHUL
o RERH -
Investors e Business strategies and performances; e General meetings;
e Effective corporate governance; e Financial reports and announcements;
e Sustainable profitability; and and
* Investment returns. e Company’s website.
2L JNUNAA o EENR o NE
o REMRE M o AREHE K
o EUF AREER - o HEEMHE -
Media & Public e Corporate governance; e Announcements;
e Environmental protection; and e Company’s website; and
e Uphold human rights standards. e Press conference.
At o [IFRZHE o EHAE
o FRBEM o B R
o ZEAK K s BREHNREGH -
o EEMRFEEMR
Suppliers e Payment schedule; e Site visits;
e Demand stability; e Meetings; and
e Operational compliance; and e Conference calls and interviews.
e Quality services and products.
5P o EEMRFEER: o W&
o EmETE: s B
s MERFEE o BWmEm M
o BERELERE K o BFHAEEHKS
o HERM-
Customers e Quality services and products; e Visits;
e Product safety; *  Meetings;

e Commercial credibility;

e Intellectual property rights and
protection; and

e Operational compliance.

e Conference calls; and
e Customers’ enquiries handling
mechanism.
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Stakeholders Areas of ESG Concern Means of Engagement
(2} o [EEEFREF o TEMEH

o EIIRER o BB

o THRMEBELE R o FEEWZ:

o FEHE - o ERM: R

e WhatsApp XIM{E8F °

Employees e Rights and benefits of employees; e Regular meetings;

e Training and development; e Employee training;

e Working environment and occupational e  Annual appraisal;

safety; and e Opinion box; and

e Equal opportunities. e WhatsApp and WeChat group.
A o HMEHE o HEIRFED

o BEME o HEEHH M

o RERE N o HEBMLEAE -

o B

Community e Community development; e Community service activities;
e Employment opportunities; e Media enquiry; and
e Environmental protection; and *  Press releases and announcements.

e Social welfare.
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High

HEHENTE
Impact on stakeholders

{8

Low

Materiality Assessment

The Group has identified ESG issues that may have potential impacts
on its sustainable development from various sources, including issues
identified and included in the Group’s previous ESG report and internal
policies, and some reflected by industry trends, the areas of ESG
concerns raised by the Group’s stakeholders as set out above, and the
Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map2. Such ESG
issues have been analysed with reference to an array of factors, including
the Group’s overall strategy, development, and goals and targets. The
Group has conducted a materiality assessment to rate the identified
ESG issues that are pertinent to its business and stakeholders, and their
respective levels of impact. The Group has adopted relevant measures
to cope with these factors, and therefore, the Group believes that
these factors do not have material impact on financial and operational
performance of the Group. The results of the materiality assessment on
the identified ESG issues are set out in the table below:

{8

Low

2 XBEEeFENZEENEENER
https://materiality.sasb.org/
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HEGNTE

Impact on business

ot

High

2 Sustainability Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map,
https://materiality.sasb.org/
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BIZ - HEREREE ESG issues
1 HERR Emissions
2 BEREEBEN Greenhouse Gas Emissions
3 BEREEY Hazardous Waste
4 BEEREY Non-Hazardous Waste
5 REIRHFE Energy Consumption
6 ke Water Consumption
7 SREUKIR Water Sourcing
8 BEMELERE Packaging Material Consumption
9 RIBMARAER Environment & Natural Resources
10 RIRE(E Climate Change
11 (=5 Employment
12 EEMKLLE Employee Turnover
13 fERRE R Health and Safety
14 15 Work Injuries
15 R K5 Development and Training
16 45 TAER| Labour Standards
17 HrEgEER Supply Chain Management
18 HremER Supplier Base
19 HiER2 0 Supplier Engagement
20 EmEE Product Responsibility
21 EmAm Product Recall
22 P mm AR R AR Product Related Complaints
23 AIHEE Intellectual Property
24 GERE Quality Assurance
25 TLER R Privacy Protection
26 REREH Anti-corruption Awareness
27 CVEESES Corruption Case
28 HEREE Community Investment

BERFERERAR
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

The Group is an established electronics manufacturing services (“EMS”)
provider offering full turnkey solutions to its customers, with particular
focus in consumer electronic products that covers a wide range of
product applications including vapour products, appliances, commercial
controls and heating, ventilation and air-conditionings.

The Group notes the importance of environmental protection and follows
the principle of sustainable development in its daily operations in an
attempt to improve the environmental awareness of its employees and
to build a sustainable environment. The Group has formulated an ESG
policy to guide the ESG practices, and our Dongguan production plant
has also established an environmental management system and relevant
policies and procedures for each business that meet the international
industry specific environmental standards and obtained ISO 14001:2015
certification. The established policies and procedures include, but
are not limited to, the Environmental Management Handbook, the
Procedure for Environmental Factors/Hazard Source Identification,
Evaluation and Updating, the Procedure of Monitoring and Measurement
of Environmental Performance, and the Management Procedures for
Electricity and Water Usage.

The Group strictly abides by the environmental laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the “Environmental Protection Law”, “Law
on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Law on the
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”, “Law on the Prevention
and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to the Environment” and “Law on
Energy Conservation” in the PRC.
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Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions derive mainly from automobiles. The types
and data of emissions are as follows:

2020 HERRE 20195 HINE

EEHBY B 2020 Amount 2019 Amount
Major Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
ABEMINO) TR
Nitrogen Oxides (NO) kg 73.02 371.73
REE(sO) T
Sulphur Oxides (SO ) kg 0.20 0.86
ERYE (PM) T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 6.84 35.23
aE SRR Greenhouse Gases Emissions

AEEMNREREBERFREBRRRNEEH
KEWMOREIRE I REREBEZFREER
RRIMNEE N - REMBERIANIEBR RTEIRTT
FALHIMIL

The Group’s direct emissions of greenhouse gases result principally
from the burning of fuel in generators and vehicles, while the indirect
emissions of greenhouse gases are mainly from the purchased electricity,
discarded waste paper and the flights that employees took for business
trips.

2020 HERE 20195 BEE

BerESE B 2020 Amount 2019 Amount

Types of Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission

&0 E1

Scope 1

Combustion of fuels in generators:

—SE/LHCO,) M S

Carbon Dioxide (Co,) Tonnes CO,e 9.15 44 .44

FR(CH,) WL

Methane (CH,) Tonnes CO,e 0.002 0.01

—SE=AN,0) WA R

Nitrous Oxide (N,O) Tonnes CO,e 0.01 0.04

st M_SE{tRE=E

Total Tonnes CO,e 9.16 44.49
BEREFIERER AR 73
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2020F B 2019FHKE

RyER By 2020 Amount 2019 Amount
Types of Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
BIRGELF
Combustion of fuels in vehicles:
—&Lico,) Et(gro ]
Carbon Dioxide (Co,) Tonnes CO,e 32.55 138.20
B (CH?) MR —RLIEE
Methane (CH%) Tonnes CO,e 0.07 0.31
— L= AN,0) B EILHE R
Nitrous Oxide (N,0O) Tonnes COze 4.73 20.12
Mt W —EtREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 37.35 158.63
$0[E2 — LRI K
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions
B3 WE—SEACIREE
Electricity? Tonnes COze 6,023.90 7,073.99
#[E3 — H BN
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
REAR W —RLIEE
Waste Paper Tonnes CO,e 14.82 27.28
N WE—SE(CIREE
Business Trips Tonnes CO,e 6.91 35.22
BmEYEHE
Total Emissions
BEENE WA —RLIEE
Total Emissions Tonnes CO,e 6,092.14 7,339.61
PEREE W—LREE RUFNERBEREN
Emissions Intensity Tonnes CO,e/every million units of production

by pieces 346.25 352.34

3 BBERRERBHB(EAIESE

hemEESE 3

BOME @ SR E AR B EERIEEEME
QOIFRHEEREERFRAFIURTEMEE

N =L E EBERGEE (20194F) ©
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For Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission (indirect emission from consumption of
purchased electricity), Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in
2019 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC, and also
the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions intensity of electricity sold by CLP in
2019 is adopted.
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Due to the outbreak of coronavirus pandemic (COVID-19), the amount
of emissions have decreased compared to the previous Reporting Period;
in particular, the usage of vehicles have decreased significantly owing
to the closure of borders checkpoints connecting Hong Kong with the
PRC and the reduction of business social events that require travelling.
To uphold the principles of sustainable development, the Group is
committed to reducing its carbon footprint, and aims to maintain its
greenhouse gas emissions intensity below 380 tonnes CO,e per every
million units of production by pieces in the next reporting period through
adopting the following mitigating measures.

Measures to Reduce Emissions

The Group has adopted a wide range of measures to reduce the
emissions that it generates. In relation to its fleet of vehicles, the Group
has prohibited the use of its vehicles by its employees other than for
business purposes and long-distance travelling by the Group’s employees
would only be approved if strictly necessary. The Group also conducts
weekly inspections and regular maintenance of its vehicles to ensure that
they operate at maximum fuel efficiency.

In relation to the diesel generators in the Group’s production plants,
the Group arranges for regular desulphurization, dust removal and
purification to reduce their emissions. The Group has also installed
exhaust ventilation systems to control emissions produced during
the soldering process, and such exhaust facilities are managed and
maintained by responsible personnel from the Administrative Department
(“ADM").

Due to the above measures, the Group has been maintaining a stable

emission levels that meets the emission standards set out by law in order
to maintain its ISO 14001:2015 certification.
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Waste Management

During the course of the Group’s daily operation, the generation of non-
hazardous waste results principally from paper consumption and other
various types of general commercial wastes, such as office supplies
and plastics. During the Reporting Period, the consumption of paper
amounted to approximately 3.09 tonnes (2019: 5.68 tonnes), and the
intensity amounted to approximately 0.18 tonnes per every million
units of production by pieces (2019: 0.27 tonnes). The Group will make
continuous efforts to keep the intensity of paper consumption below
0.30 tonnes per every million units of production by pieces in the next
reporting period.

The generation of hazardous waste results principally from chemical
waste, such as waste mineral oil and used mercury containing lamps and
paints. During the Reporting Period, the production of hazardous waste
amounted to approximately 0.41 tonnes (2019: 1.67 tonnes), and the
intensity amounted to approximately 0.02 tonnes per every million units
of production by pieces (2019: 0.08). The Group will make continuous
efforts to keep the intensity of hazardous waste produced below 0.10
tonnes per million units of production by pieces in the next reporting
period.

The Group actively advocates the idea of a green and sustainable
working environment, and adheres to the principle of the “four ‘Re’
actions in environmental protection” (reduce, reuse, recycle and
replace) in our daily operation, aiming to minimize the generation of
waste and make full use of resources. The Group has implemented the
Waste Management Procedures that divides waste into hazardous waste
and non-hazardous waste. For the former, the Group has engaged an
environmental service provider with Hazardous Waste Business License
to collect and treat hazardous waste annually. As for the latter, the Group
further divides such waste into recyclable and non-recyclable waste. The
recyclable waste are sorted out and collected by recycling companies at
the centralised location.

In terms of paper consumption, the Group has established an Office
Supply Policy that requires the employees to use both sides of paper
when printing or photocopying, and to reuse single-sided paper for
photocopying or printing of draft documents. Employees are required
to check if there is any confidential or sensitive information on the used
paper before recycling it, while the paper with confidential or sensitive
information is retained or shredded directly and cannot be reused. The
Group also encourages online communication to reduce the use of

paper.
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Use of Resources

The Group's direct and indirect energy consumption results principally
from the consumption of diesel for generators and electricity respectively.

2020548 20196 HREE
RERER B 2020 2019
Types of Energy Unit Consumption Consumption
BERERERE - TR
Direct Energy Consumption: Generators
Lo TR
Diesel kWh 37,461.35 181,955.14
EIREEIRERE - B
Indirect Energy Consumption: Electricity
£ FRES
Electricity kWh 7,519,287.00 8,486,175.00
RERHMERE TR
Total Energy Consumption kWh 7,556,748.35 8,668,130.14
BERHERE TER BRUTHEERSEN
Energy Consumption Intensity kWh/total production units by pieces 0.43 0.42

AEBERNZELEHR - HERTERSE B
R RE B B R E R0 50T R 42
HEtRESEIAT -

RETRfE AR

RETHAEMS - AEECHEREERRE
Fro LRI ER 2 RSB OER - G2
FRAEBNIERER  BRREBERMAIES
FIARTMERREHREMETRBLER
FIHEBEREITHRBELIENER THR
B BRAERASBERLEHBERERE
FEBFT -

EERBRZERAR AR
2020F

The Group endeavours to establish a low-carbon culture and work
towards the target of keeping the total energy consumption intensity
below 0.50 kWh per total production units by pieces in the next
reporting period.

Energy Use Efficiency

In terms of electricity saving, the Group has established the Management
Procedures for Electricity Usage to ensure industrial safety and encourage
energy conservation. Specific measures in such procedures include
requiring employees to turn off electrical equipment and power supply
before leaving the premises and when not using such equipment;
prohibiting employees from laying cables without permission from the
ADM; monitoring electricity usage on a monthly basis and following-up
with departments that exceed the electricity usage standards.
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Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets the Group's daily operational
needs and there has been no difficulty in sourcing water. Water is mainly
used in the offices in Hong Kong and the Dongguan production plant
for cleaning and sanitation. As the office premises in Hong Kong is
centrally managed by property management, the data only covers water
usage by the Dongguan production plant. The total water consumption
in Dongguan production plant was 95,390 cubic meters (2019: 123,440
cubic meters), and the intensity of total water consumption was 0.01 per
total production units by pieces (2019: 0.01 cubic meters). The Group
will make continuous efforts in working towards the target of maintaining
the intensity of total water consumption at or below 0.03 per total
production units by pieces in the next reporting period.

The Group strives to conserve water by implementing measures such as:
adopting circulating water system, performing regular checks on faucets
to avoid unnecessary leakage and to enable prompt reporting of any
damages, and actively promoting water conservation awareness among
the Group’s employees by placing water-saving signs in toilets and next
to every faucet.

Packaging Material

The Group uses materials such as paper, paper boxes, partition
cardboard, plastic bags, and foam sponges for the packaging of its
products. During the Reporting Period, approximately 677.32 tonnes
of packaging materials were used (2019: 575 tonnes), and the intensity
of packaging material used was 38.50 tonnes per every million units of
production by pieces (2019: 27.58 tonnes).

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group constantly adheres to the ISO 14001:2015 environmental
management standards and ESG policy, and ensures that it minimises its
carbon footprints and its impacts on the environment through systematic
management of all environmental aspects of its activities, products and
services.
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Climate Change

The Group has considered the potential climate-related risks in respect
of the recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures and identified the potential physical risks and transition risks
from climate change which may result in adverse financial impacts to the
Group’s businesses.

Acute physical risks can arise from extreme weather conditions such as
flooding and storms and chronic physical risks can arise from sustained
high temperatures, while transition risks may result from changes in
environmental-related regulations or changes in customer preferences.
Upon evaluation of the potential acute physical risks that may cause
disruption to the Group’s manufacturing activities and supply network,
the Group concluded that its offices and production plants are not
located in high-risk flood areas and that it maintains a large supplier
base, with an access to alternate suppliers in the event of any of its
supplier being affected by extreme weather conditions. While sustained
high temperatures may result in an increase in electricity consumption,
the Group has adopted energy conservation measures in managing such
risks, which are detailed in the above subsection headed “Environmental
— Energy Use Efficiency”. As for the potential transition risks, the Group
continues to monitor the regulatory environment and the product market
to ensure that its products meet the demands and expectations of its
customers and regulators.

It is expected that potential extreme weather conditions, sustained high
temperatures, changes in environmental-related regulations and customer
preference would not result in a material impact on the Group’s
operation. Nevertheless, the Group continues to monitor the climate-
related risks and implement relevant measures to minimise the potential
physical and transition risks.

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Standards

The Group believes that employees are one of the most valuable assets
of an enterprise and considers human resource management as an
integral part of its overall business strategy. The Group strictly abides by
all applicable laws and regulations related to employment, including
but not limited to the “Employment Ordinance”, the “Minimum Wage
Ordinance”, and the “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance in Hong
Kong, and the “Labour Contract Law”, “Labour Law”, “Regulations on
Paid Annual Leave of Employees”, “Law on the Protection of Women’s
Rights and Interests”, “Law on the Protection of Disabled Persons and
Social Insurance Law” in the PRC.
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The Group is committed to building a diversified and inclusive working
environment to ensure no employees are discriminated against or
deprived of opportunities due to gender, ethnic background, religious
belief, colour, sexual orientation, age, marital status or family status
in relation to recruitment and promotions. The Group has specially
formulated the Rules on the Labour Protection of Female Employees and
Anti-discrimination and Harassment Procedures to protect the rights of
all employees, so that the employees’ talents can be reflected on, assessed
and rewarded fairly.

The Group strictly opposes and prohibits any form of child and forced
labour. To avoid forced and child labour, the Human Resources
Department performs detailed interview screening procedures on each
candidate. A thorough background check is conducted to verify the
authenticity of personal data stated on application forms by examining
the applicants’ original identity cards and making detailed inquiries to
ensure that no child labour is employed.

If any child or forced labour is discovered, the Group would immediately
terminate his/her employment and investigate the incident. Forced
labour is strictly prohibited by the Group with zero tolerance. We shall
take disciplinary actions against any employees who are accountable for
causing child labour or forced labour incidents. During the Reporting
Period, the Group did not have any cases of child labour or forced
labour.

The Group also established a Human Resources Policy to manage its
employee recruitment, resignation, promotion and other processes, so
as to standardize the workflow and improve the working efficiency of
the Group. In accordance with its needs, the Group will select suitable
candidates through levels of selection processes, including resume-
screening, background check and job interview. Employees who intend
to resign shall give the head of the relevant department and the manager
in charge advance notice in writing. On the last day of employment of
the staff who is leaving the Group, the Human Resources Department
performs exit interview with the leaving staff to understand the reason of
their resignation, and see if they have any opinion or complaint, in order
to ascertain if there are any deficiencies within the management system
of the Group. The Group performs employee probation assessments
and annual appraisals, which serve as important bases for rewards and
punishments, salary adjustment and promotion, year-end bonus, etc.
The remuneration policy in place is commensurate with the job nature,
qualifications and experience of employees, and such policy is reviewed
annually. In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and employee
related insurance benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to
employees based on individual performance.
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Number of Employees

To engage high-calibre talents and motivate existing employees, the
Group provides a competitive remuneration package, fringe benefits,
and welfare allowances for its employees, such as the medical and social
insurances, travel and phone call allowances. The standard working
hours of the Group’s employees are 8 hours per day and 40 hours per
week on average with at least 1 rest day per week. In order to enhance
team cohesion and create a harmonious working atmosphere, the Group
organizes various group activities on a regular basis.

The Group was awarded the honour of the “2020 Employee Satisfied
Enterprise (2020 FE & T/HE1®%)” by Bureau of Commerce of
Chang’an Town Dongguan City (GREEm &L HEARBNES D), Bureau
of Industry and Information Technology of Chang’an Town Dongguan
City (R=EMRZEARKFE LXEEREA) and Trade Union of
Chang’an Town Dongguan City(Rz=m R Z#EA T E), and also awarded
the “Caring Company Logo” by Hong Kong Council of Social Service
for five consecutive years, in recognition for its commitment to caring

workplace culture and caring environment.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 9104 full-time
employees, the details of whom are as follows:
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Total number of employees 910
Number of employees by gender

Female 477
Male 433
Number of employees by age group

<25 102
25-29 118
30-39 379
40-49 271
>50 40
Number of employees by employment type

Full-time 909
Part-time 1
Number of employees by geographical region

Hong Kong 73
PRC 837
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2020F
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Employee Turnover

As of 31 December 2020, the employee turnover rate across the Group
was 10 per cent, the details of which are as follows:
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Employee turnover rate by gender

Female 37%
Male 63%
Employee turnover rate by age group

<25 26%
25-29 21%
30-39 30%
40-49 16%
>50 7%
Employee turnover rate by geographical region

Hong Kong 25%
PRC 75%
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Health and Safety

Employee’s health and safety is of utmost importance to the Group,
which complies with all relevant safety regulations such as the
“Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong and the
“Production Safety law” and “Fire Protection Law” in the PRC. It has
developed an Employee Safety Policy that identifies different potential
hazards, and outlines safety procedures for different aspects of its
production activities. The Group also has contingency measures in the
Employee Handbook which outline the work arrangements in times of
crisis such as typhoons, rainstorms and serious communicable disease.

In the Group’s Dongguan production plant, the Environmental Health
and Safety (“EHS”) employee is responsible for handling all health and
safety related issues. All employees have to sign a confirmation notice
after inspecting their working environment. The Group also requires
all new employees to complete a “3-Level Safety Training” before
commencing work. The training includes operational and preventative
guidelines to equip the employees with knowledge to work safely, to
guide employees to operate equipment in an accurate and safe manner,
and to enhance employees’ ability to respond to emergencies.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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General safety measures include the prohibition of smoking in non-
smoking zones, such as the warehouse, flammable and explosive
areas, and the production department; the formulation of the fire safety
management in accordance with applicable law, and conducting regular
fire drills to strengthen the safety awareness of all employees.

In the midst of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group had set up a COVID-19
emergency recovery team and developed contingency plans to ensure
that all practicable preventive and protective measures are in place to
minimize the risk of spread of the coronavirus, including but not limited
to employees’ and visitors’ health declarations, daily temperature checks,
work from home arrangements, mask wearing and social distancing
requirements and the provision of masks and sanitizers. The Group also
formulated a special plan to guide and manage cross-border drivers
entering the Dongguan production plant. The Group pays close attention
to latest developments regarding the COVID-19 pandemic and regularly
reviews such plans to ensure their adequacy and suitability.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not experience any work-
related fatalities, but there were 4 reported cases of work injuries,
resulting a total of 101 lost days.

20205 2019%F 20184

2020 2019 2018

TEEE Number of injuries 4 6 23
BATERY Lost days 101 212 228
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Over the past three years including the Reporting Period, the number of
work injuries suffered by the Group’s employees have been decreasing
steadily. Although majority of the injuries happened after work, the
Group continues to reflect on its existing safety policies and is committed
to continuously adapt and improve its occupational safety measures as
would be necessary.

Development and Training

The Group believes that skills and experience of its employees are
critical to the long-term development of the Group. The Group therefore
invests in the growth of its employees to enhance their knowledge and
skills which would in turn allow them to discharge their duties effectively
and helps them achieve their personal goals. The Group is committed
to supporting the improvement, development and growth of all our
employees across all levels, and providing both in-house and external
training programs to our employees.
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Employee Training

During the Reporting Period, the details of employees who received
trainings are as follows:
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Percentage of employee trained by gender

Female 31%
Male 69%
Percentage of employee trained by employee category

Management 1%
Mid-level employee 7%
Junior employee 92%

Average training hours completed per employee

by gender
Female 11.91/)\8F hours
Male 12.66/)\BF hours

Average training hours completed per employee by
employee category

EIRE Management 7.86/\BF hours

FREE Mid-level employee 7.55/\BF hours

MEEE Junior employee 12.74/)\EF hours
HEgEEE Supply Chain Management

AEERARSD FERERERERIFER
RSB —3 D + R AEBRAR
B EEET R MO ERE - AEE

FREMERERREEBENRA - BREE
BB AAEARAEEIRMEER LRSS - A&
EEsREERETEERMNEE([BE )W
HEES AR EANBERBERER - Al
CEEWHERA1E<2002/95/ECH([RoHS |) &
eBReEM - 5 - R ERSIEREC No
1907/2009)([ REACH]J) ©

7%#%‘5 fERBREFLACHERNGEERE

- AN E S EHEETE ([SBM ) IR 2R 1E12
F EREA - RIIRREIE - ERMHLE
B R A R 2 ATETT RS - FERHE NE
HimER A e -

34

The Group understands that prudent supply chain management is integral
to its sustainable development, and is therefore committed to establishing
long-term and harmonious cooperation relationships with its suppliers.
The Group expects its suppliers to uphold the principles of integrity and
pragmatism, and provide products and services in strict compliance with
the requirements of applicable laws and regulations. The Group requires
suppliers to comply with applicable laws and regulations, including
relevant European Union (“EU”) directives and regulation such as the
Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive 2002/95/EC (“RoHS”) and
the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and Restriction of Chemicals
Regulation (EC) No 1907/2009 (“REACH”).

In order to standardise the procurement procedures and strengthen the
monitoring and management of suppliers, the Group has established the
Supply Base Management (“SBM”) Standard Operating Procedure, which
includes key measures such as assessments prior to accepting a supplier as
an approved supplier, and on-going assessments and regular inspections
of approved suppliers.
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When sourcing new suppliers, the SBM team and the supply quality
assurance team would evaluate the capability of the potential supplier,
and the engineers may request the supplier to submit samples for testing.
The SBM team would obtain relevant documents such as signed supplier
information forms with company chops and compliance declaration
forms in relation to RoHS and REACH from a new supplier. A new
supplier can only be added to the approved vendor list upon assessment
and approval of the manager and vice president of SBM. Assessments
include the new supplier’s background information, product and service
quality, reputation, human rights management adopted by the suppliers,
and any significant environmental non-compliance incidents. Supplier
performance appraisal is conducted on an annual basis, suppliers that
fail to meet the Group’s standards may result in termination of the
cooperation.

Currently, the Group has a total of 786 suppliers, amongst them, 508
suppliers are located in the PRC, 186 suppliers are located in Hong
Kong, and the remaining 92 suppliers are located in the U.S., Europe and
the rest of Asia.

Product and Service Responsibility

Providing a safe, quality and reliable product and service to customers
is one of the core values of the Group, and it has a strong commitment
to attain high quality in its manufacturing process. The Group adopted
the principles of total quality management (“TQM”), provides on-going
training to its employees in terms of quality assurance, and complies with
all relevant regulations such as the “Product Quality Law” in the PRC,
the EU Directive 2006/122/EC, 2005/69/EC and 2011/65/EU, and the
Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006.

The Group maintains stringent quality assurance and inspections
throughout the manufacturing process, from the incoming quality
assurance of materials procured to performing in-process inspections
during production and outgoing quality assurance of finished electronic
products. The quality assurance officers will perform periodic sample
check, including visual checks, functionality tests, automated optical
inspection (“AOl”) and/or x-ray inspections to ensure that all products
meet the specification and standard before being delivered to customers.

The Group also has a traceability record system in place, under which
all its products are labelled with codes during its production process,
which facilitates its easy retrieval of production data with the traceability
system. If there are quality issues with the Group’s products, the Group’s
traceability record system enables it to promptly ascertain the source of
the defect throughout the production process, identify the defective lot
of products and take appropriate remedial measures to rectify the issues
and to prevent future recurrence.
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In addition, the Group has a Class 100K cleanroom production floor
with a gross floor area of approximately 2,700 square meters in its
production facility, which comprises a Class 10K cleanroom laboratory
for the production of products with higher sanitary requirements, such as
medical and healthcare products.

With the stringent quality assurance in place, the Group has obtained,
among others, 1SO 9001:2015 for quality management system in
respect of manufacture of printed circuit board assembly (“PCBA”)
and design of household control modules, ISO 13485:2016 for quality
management system for manufacture of electrocardiogram monitor patch
(PCBA) and pulse oximeter, QSR 820 for the United States Food and
Drug Administration Medical Device Quality System Regulation, and
Good Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) certifications for food from both
International Electrotechnical Commission (“IEC”) and Underwriters
Laboratories Inc. (“UL”). The certification process involves subjecting the
Group's production processes and quality management system to annual
review.

Intellectual Property

The Group recognises the importance of protecting and enforcing its
intellectual property rights, and strictly complies with all relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on it including but not
limited to the “Trade Marks Ordinance and Copyright Ordinance”
in Hong Kong, and “Trademark Law” and “Patent Law” in the PRC.
The Group has adopted practices to avoid infringement of intellectual
property rights, such as entered into Confidentiality Agreement (“CA”) or
Non-Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”) with its subcontracted manufacturer
and employees; and register intellectual property rights that are material
to its business operation.

The Group now has nine trademarks, one patent and two domain names
that are material to its business.

Privacy Protection

In the course of the Group’s business operations, it collects and maintains
basic information of its customers, suppliers and employees, any
dispatch or use of such data for other purposes is strictly prohibited. The
Group has set up rules and formulated Personal Data Policy to handle
confidential information and prohibit any leakage of information relating
to the Group, its suppliers and its customers to any external parties. The
Group's practices in collecting, using and maintaining its information are
in line with the “Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance” in Hong Kong and
“Cybersecurity Law” in the PRC.
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Complaints and Responses

The Group takes all feedback and complaints from customers seriously
and ensures that immediate follow up actions are taken upon receipt of
complaints. The Group has established a customer complaint handling
procedure, in cases where complaints are received, the quality engineer
from the Quality Assurance Department will investigate the incidents
and issue a report that outlines the responsible department, the problem
analysed, and the corrective actions identified and implemented.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received 27 complaints and
all have been resolved after the Group taken the follow-up actions. No
products were subjected to recalls due to safety and health reasons.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and regulations over
anti-corruption, including the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” in
Hong Kong and the “Criminal Law” in the PRC.

The Employee Handbook clearly outlines the expected business conduct
and professional ethics of the Group’s employees. The Group also has
the Corporate Governance Policies and Procedures, and the Policy on
Inside Information to convey a clear message to all employees that acts
such as bribery, extortion and fraud is strictly prohibited. In the Group'’s
Dongguan production plant, anti-corruption training is included in the
induction training provided to all new employees, with over 200 training
sessions having been held during the Reporting Period. In the Group’s
Hong Kong office, an anti-corruption online training is provided to all
employees including directors.

The Group also has the Whistle blowing Policy in place for the reporting
of any concerns about malpractices or improprieties. If employees have
any concerns about malpractices or improprieties, they can report to
their supervisor or to the Whistleblowing Committee via email. A full
investigation will then be conducted, disciplinary action will be applied
to the employees involved upon confirmation of the occurrence, and
further legal action may be taken depending on the nature and particular
circumstances of each case.

During the Reporting Period, no legal cases regarding corruption were

brought against the Group or its employees, and the Group is not aware
of any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud or other violations.
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Community Investment

The Group earnestly fulfils its social responsibilities, actively carries out
public welfare activities, and regards public welfare as an important
aspect of its corporate culture. During the Reporting Period, the Group
had not organized any community and charity activities due to the
outbreak of COVID-19. The Group will explore holding public welfare

activities in the future after COVID-19 situation improves and restrictions

are lifted.
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BEFEMBERERDGARKRE To the Shareholders of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited
(RESHSEME T HERAE]) (incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

R OPINION

EMEHFTHRAR What we have audited

BFEBIERERAR(ATEMEEAR )X The consolidated financial statements of Wise Ally International Holdings
HWB AT (A TSE BERE )5 NE104  Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
2196 BRSBTS HhE - BFF - pages 104 to 196, which comprise:

M20205F12 A31 B A MR R

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December

2020;

s HEZALFEMGEEZHKGE e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o BEZRIFENGAEREDHR » the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o HEZBILFERNGEAESREER K e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

TAIBHREANE  BETFESETEEEH o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a
o summary of significant accounting policies.
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Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

AEER BT IEHRERNBETRAEEMNEIE - &  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
¢K$IE%E1£1F3%J%§§§%?Q sk M A statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

ERRETERIEN - TS EELEEIRM  context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
BHENER and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

BER BB NEREETFEVEERSE  The key audit matter identified in our audit is relating to revenue

EEmilaBRE

RREER
Key Audit Matter

recognition for the sales of goods:

EPNETTNAEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

FERRIHE B ikt

Revenue recognition for the sales of goods

B2HRE M BHRENE2.21 %5 -
Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BE20205F12A31HILFE - REHEEm K
F#H819,503,000/8TTH BERENZREZEK
ImARHER

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
revenue from the sales of goods amounting to
approximately HK$819,503,000 was recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

FrEREmiiENE mEHRERERENTE—E
i R MR A as

Revenue from the sales of goods transferred at a
point in time is recognised when the control of the
goods has transferred.

98

BB FERHE Em B EMATHREF 81
Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition for the
sales of goods included:

o TPIEEAR - FHE RER A BRRHE R MK IRRIES]
e We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
respect of revenue recognition for the sales of goods;

o HAIUHESTABHETFNHEEAYN  LBSAHERER
Zihil4E 2z B R R RIRIHER A EES(MA) - KUaF
i BEEENUEERBRRELTARITEEARE

e We reviewed, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with
customers and identified the terms and conditions relating
to the timing of transfer of control of goods, along with other
customary business practices, if any, to assess if the Group’s
revenue recognition policies were in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

o BB B FEARER R WS 5 BN - BF
% HAHERENHEQONERETHLER - RMETHE
EnnlasERRE SRENRSERBRTUER &

e We compared, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recognised during the year with delivery documents,
customers’ acknowledgement of sales, underlying sales
invoices and sales contracts to determine whether revenue
from the sales of goods had been recognised in accordance
with the Group's revenue recognition policies; and

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4
:

B
.
2

M Et N AEEBERESSHE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

#fiE

BIR e

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
revenue transaction occurred. Hence significant
audit resources were allocated to audit this area.

ER ERFATHORR - HARSHEERN
WS ERER B RIS

HtfER

BERAREFAHEMERAR - HBEEEHE
FRANWMBER  ETEREEAUHHRER L
BRI BED RS

ﬁﬁﬁ%’ﬂ*/—\ﬁﬁ‘“iﬁﬁ MERX MREEME
ﬁzfﬁﬁTiTEZ%ﬁﬁM%%%é%&ﬁ%ﬁE’\J

B

§>

HE cm
]kjnF

ERMEEEMEREROET - RMIWEE
%&EJEEH@TD B EBiEd  ZREMEER
EhREEE VB mER B MESTBEFRT
BB RAFEEREE N EUTFEERNER
FRALAY B ©

ERRMBRTHIE - 0REF E{U%H?M:.
EREERERRL - R ERSZFE
HiENE  BPRBEARS

BFERERERAR
20204F 3

IR TE - RRARFIEANKGZZ S
EREA o At - TMERIL S AET DI EEERT

o RFICAE S NS BEFER 2 k2 #ERNHES Rk
%Eﬁi S %}Eiﬁﬁ’iﬁﬁfﬁiﬁ%?‘mmﬁ?ﬁu ETTIR
F REMETF HE S MRS R B NEE 1 B T AR
%7\]\ o
e We tested, on a sample basis, revenue transactions from the
sales of goods recognised before and after the financial year-
end to delivery documents, customers’ acknowledgement
of sales and underlying sales invoices to determine whether
revenue from the sales of goods had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that
the recognition of revenue from the sales of goods was supported by
available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a

material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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BERAKE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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REMABHESMEREAIER AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF

BE(H) THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

HEARBIAZHMMRENETEE AR AR  The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

SR e auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

EERKBEEMEKA PricewaterhouseCoopers

RS AT Certified Public Accountants

&7 0 2021938298 Hong Kong, 29 March 2021

EFERLZRERAT
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HZE2020F12 A31HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Pt e TExT FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000

&= Revenue 5 819,503 980,844
HHEMRA Cost of sales 6 (662,611) (754,653)
EF Gross profit 156,892 226,191
HAh)FEE Other losses, net 7 (9,829) (1,769)
EAb YA Other income 7 4,800 6,850
HE MDY Selling and distribution expenses 6 (48,241) (59,951)
THAX Administrative expenses 6 (87,474) (108,068)
SRMEERERSE Impairment losses on financial assets 6 (1,456) _
R F Operating profit 14,692 63,253
BEBA Finance income 9 783 69
BhE Ak AR Finance costs 9 (11,980) (19,362)
SERLE B A Finance costs, net 9 (11,197) (19,293)
RRATSB AR Profit before income tax 3,495 43,960
FrefifEs Income tax expense 10 (2,044) (10,570)
RRBERFE ARG Profit for the year attributable to equity

FREF holders of the Company 1,451 33,390
Hit2mEE(&iE) - Other comprehensive income/(losses):
RERJEFHAIRE Item that may be subsequently reclassified to

By E H profit or loss
B HEZERE Currency translation differences 3,749 (1,982)
BHETEEN 7IEE Item that will not be subsequently reclassified

B ayIE A to profit or loss
REIRG ST &I Actuarial gain on long service payment

BEWE scheme 5 30
FRHEMEZEKE Total other comprehensive

(F518) 8% income/(losses) for the year 3,754 (1,952)
PN Total comprehensive income for

s AEWL the year attributable to equity holders

FREEBBLEEE of the Company 5,205 31,438
RDRERFE ARG Earnings per share attributable to equity

BREF holders of the Company
R R8BI Basic and diluted (HK cents) 11 0.07 2.23

Flt 4R & 2 U a8 R RE B B B A B R — BF

104

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R2020F12 831H

As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
k=g THET THTT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
aE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
L E =Y L Properties, plant and equipment 12 92,740 103,909
B EE Intangible assets 13 2,460 3,438
Re RIafRIA Deposits and prepayments 15 8,249 4,669
EETIBEE Deferred tax assets 20 5,068 5,078
108,517 117,094
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 16 135,954 126,878
B S rIEE Trade receivables 18 255,800 203,375
TENFIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
E At fEYRIE other receivables 15 10,919 12,790
JRE M5 e X B FRE Amounts due from related companies 30 = 2,932
EHEMIRI TR Pledged bank deposits 17 - 10,000
R RREEFEY Cash and cash equivalents 17 234,376 138,623
637,049 494,598
HEE Total assets 745,566 611,692
fE= EQUITY
AATEEFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
EihER of the Company
&N Share capital 26 20,000 10
] Reserves 117,705 52,145
wrER Total equity 137,705 52,155
BFBRZERAR AR
2000F% 105
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72020912 A31H

As at 31 December 2020

2020 2019
Bt FTET FHT
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
afE LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
REIRB 212 Long service payment scheme 25 30
RITENR Bank borrowings 25 _ 45,000
B B Deferred government grants 23 170 428
RIEFRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 20 1,164 _
HEBE Lease liabilities 19 24,489 34,737
25,848 80,195
RBaE Current liabilities
=) ANEE] Trade payables 21 180,228 113,364
AHEE - EMENFIEKL  Contract liabilities, other payables
FEETER and accruals 23 102,495 87,708
BT BURT BB Deferred government grants 23 1,033 1,149
HEAE Lease liabilities 19 14,296 13,214
e EIE Bills payables 22 20,328 30,399
SRITIER Bank borrowings 25 261,456 221,593
JEA BB X B RIR Amount due to a related company 30 126 -
BNEAPRIETH B & Current income tax liabilities 2,051 11,915
582,013 479,342
maeE Total liabilities 607,861 559,537
BEREEARE Total equity and liabilities 745,566 611,692

LR e B MR REEBEM AN s — 03  The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in
& e conjunction with the accompanying notes.

F1042 196 EFTH MG MG MR TIELESEE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 104 to 196 were

7202143 H29 At/ RREERE approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and were signed
on its behalf:
BT KEIE Tsang Ming Chit Stanley Chu Wai Hang Raymond
EF EBEF Director Director
106 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BZE2020F 12 A31BHIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

ARARBRRARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
Bx  RteE  AERE  AbRE  EARGE  ERkE ags
Share Share  Statutory Other ~ Exchange Retained Total
capital  Premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(HE@) (& (c)
(Note (a)) (Note (c))
 R00F1AIAMER  Balanceatlfanuay2000 10 = 6,205 62 (8,908) 54,786 52,155
2EkE Comprehensive income
ERgF Profit for the year - = = - = 1,451 1,451
B2 EhE Other comprehensive income

BERIEFAEZERNES  ltem that may be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
EEBEER Currency translation differences = = = = 3,749 = 3,749
EETBEHAEZERMES ltem that will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss
RERBSHENEENE  Actuarial gain on long service
payment scheme - - = 5 - - 5

2ANBEE Total comprehensive income - - - 5 3,749 1,451 5,205

RREREAETNRS Transactions with equity holders

BRMeET(H260) Capitalisation issue (Note 26(a)) 14,990 (14,990) - - - R -
T ERTESEATA (HiE26(b))  Issuance of shares upon listing (Note 26(b) 5000 120,000 - - - - 125,000
BB Share issuance costs = (24,655) = = = = (24,655)
R (M) Appropriation (Note b) . - 83 i, ; (83) i
8 (HiE4) Dividend (Note 24) - - - - - (200000 (20,000
EERHEARTNRZEE  Total transactions with equity holders 19,990 80,355 83 - - (20083) 80345
2020512831 BHI&ER Balance at 31 December 2020 20,000 80,355 6,288 67 (5,159) 36,154 137,705

BEERERARAT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B E2020F12A31HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

AR RVESRA AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BA AewE HbRE  EXEE Bk BiEn
Share  Statutory Other  Exchange Retained Total
capital reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT TRT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

GER) (PitE(C))
(Note (a)) (Note ()

H2019F1 1A% Balance at 1 January 2019 - 4,829 42 (6,926) 126,772 124,717
2EWE Comprehensive income
FEREAl Profit for the year - - - - 33,390 33,390
Hit2E W/ (B18) Other comprehensive income/(loss)
AR BHAEE Item that may be subsequently

BaaEA reclassified to profit or loss
EHnEESR Currency translation differences - - - (1,982) - (1,982)
AFETEEFHAHZ  ltem that will not be subsequently

Bt EA reclassified to profit or loss
RERE2EN Actuarial gain on long service

BEWER payment scheme - - 30 - - 30
2H W3 (B518)8% Total comprehensive income/(loss) - - 30 (1,982) 33,390 31,438
BER BB A TR S Transactions with equity holders
RESHITLAR  Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant to

(F351.2) the reorganisation (Note 1.2) 10 - (10) - - -
B (Pstb) Appropriation (Note b) - 1,376 - - (1,376) -
B (BitiE24) Dividend (Note 24) - - - - (104,000)  (104,000)
HERKEA Total transactions with

ETHRZLE equity holders 10 1,376 (10) - (105,376)  (104,000)
R2019512A318 Balance at

ks 31 December 2019 10 6,205 62 (8,908) 54,786 52,155

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HZE2020F12A31HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020

MIEE

(a)

ARARIR2019F1 A15 B - BSHA(TE
A 1)72019F12 813 B 726K ©

REARLAMB([HE])EZRERRTE  HE
A RN RS AR RN DIKA - A
shEESBREVBHRERAZBOAERILE
MORHBEFEMRFERR)ERNE T
ERETRRE - MERERBEREERN
M aRAL o A B A B 29 Ik EL 7R 5 A B 4R 04 A
Al AEEADRAERBEERN10%0E
BELTERBREE -  SREERSFREBBELE
MEARES50%H - QA B AME IFEE < EFERH
RESERRNRBRARER  BEXARZERX
BIMRARER - 5 - RAAIRBEESEERE
& E-SERABRENEERREHEE -

HitEEEASERE TSR BAENRIIR
B mRENEE s  £ZEEE RN
HiHR - RSB R RS O A A 8
EHEBANNKE -

bl kR A an B Bh 5% R ERLBE P O B R — GFBD

=,
(128

BFERERERAR
20204F 3

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 15 January 2019 and the reorganisation
(the “Reorganisation”) was completed on 13 December 2019.

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations require
companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the profit after income tax (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. A PRC company is required to
appropriate an amount of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of its post-tax profits
of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when
the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the company, to expand the company’s operations, or to increase
the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make further
contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Other reserve represents the accumulated actuarial gains on the Group’s
long service payment scheme for its Hong Kong employees and the excess
of the combined share capital of the companies comprising the Group, after
considering the intra-group elimination, over the consideration given in
relation to the Reorganisation.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HZE2020F12 A31HILFE

For the year ended 31 December 2020

2020 2019
k=g THET THET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BETHELENEELSHRE  Cash flows from operating activities
KEEENRS Cash generated from operations 27(a) 58,734 141,606
ENFEN Income tax paid (10,427) (4,274)
KEEBHEERNFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 48,307 137,332
REZFHELEMNBESHRE  Cash flows from investing activities
BEME - BB &&E Purchase of properties, plant and equipment (18,277) (16,278)
HEWE - BEKLERER  Proceeds from disposal of properties,

Fri8z1E plant and equipment 27(b) 117 253
BEEFEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,134) (3,124)
EREERTERARER Repayment from the then immediate

holding company - 139,601
EWFE Interest received 783 429
PIEEREMEFFAE  Receipt of government grants for purchase of

L ER R T 4 B equipment and software licenses - 774
EIRIRIT I 8 Change in pledged bank deposits 10,000 -
wEEBN(ATA), B8 Net cash (used in)/generated from

SFEIR S investing activities (8,511) 121,655
BMEFHELENBESHRE  Cash flows from financing activities
WITEFPTERIE Proceeds from bank borrowings 27(c) 644,672 896,933
BBIRITIER Repayments of bank borrowings 27(c) (649,809) (1,026,713)
YHNBAEAEMAEIS  Payment of principal element of

lease liabilities 27(c) (13,925) (11,918)
RS Dividend paid 24 (20,000) -
AT PSR Proceeds from issuance of shares 26(b) 125,000 -
EAFLE Interest paid (12,690) (19,936)
SRR D B TR AN Payment of share issuance costs (17,629) (4,968)
RYETEENETS,(FTA) Net cash generated from/(used in)

FiRE financing activities 55,619 (166,602)
RERBSEEYIGMNFE Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 95,415 92,385
FURE LR EEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

the year 138,623 46,171
BEEmEEE Currency translation differences 338 67
FRESLREEHFEYD Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17 234,376 138,623

A TR 7 2B 5% BB B 9 3 — B BB

3
=
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The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 —RERMKEA

1.1 —RER

RRARRB—RIRIBEHR SRS ADIF22
BERELE(1961 A0 =) (BiFEE &k
EET)R2019F1 A5 A ERER S
ME I B BR A GF] o He M
=z H 3 A 4th Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, P.O. Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands °

ARRBB—RREZEBRARRENE
AE([HAEE)IZREEFEMN
SUENHEl EWEHK ) - RZERR
RARBEAE(TREELELE ) K
SEAE(TRBEEE]) (HHEER
RER]) - ®%FBRERBFEMALIA
K—EEFIBEAT -

RABRMDR20205F1 B10BEE S
BERPABRATER LT °

BRARAFHAN  RAEMBHRERATE
([ FER))BEMZT -

BEEFERERAR

20205 7R

1T GENERAL
REORGANISATION

INFORMATION AND

1.1 General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 January 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of electronic products (the “Listing
Business”). The ultimate controlling shareholders are Mr. Chu
Wai Cheong Wilson (“Mr. Wilson Chu”) and Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Chu”) (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) who have been controlling the group companies
since their incorporation.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 10 January 2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$000”), unless otherwise
stated.
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REBERAREE((ERAMAH
EDRARRBNRBEHAER SR
BRARERLED(TER]) - NEE
ETER  BEPEESRATTR

(@ M 20191 A 108 - Brilliant
Holdings Investment Group
Limited ( [ Brilliant Holdings | ) 18
BEERAHE (| RBELH
S1)VEPIEMKZAERAT
b % 15 3 17 &% % 50,000 Bk =
BrEE1.00% T ([R5 ]) MK
9 o FEREMAIZI& © —ABrilliant
Holdings &9 B {7 & 1 {8 Ac 2% Ko 3%
TFREER(FE)BRQA
([EeEB DY ARISEE -

(b) M2019F 1 A 10 B 2019 £F 1
H 15 H ° Smart Union Global
Group Limited ([ Smart Union]) X
Grandview Group Holdings Limited
([ Grandview |) 7 BlITR & 5 B Bz £
RESADIGEMAC AL - WIEREETT
% 50,000/ &R E{E1.00ETTH
SN a o 11} AV SR o I /NCTE =
B EER % R T —AREET.00
ETRIROD TAREEEERKEE
S AR BEE -

() P 2019F 1 H10 B  Smartview
Investments Limited ([ Smartview |)
BIRRBE LS AR
BERAR  WERERITRS
50,000 A% & A% T {8 1.00 3 7T ) iR
7 o TEREMAKSIME - BERE R EETT
9 A% Smartview 1% H B A BR 51| & 4
B2 ERREEEERELR
EEE D BRI T ARG ©

1T GENERAL

INFORMATION AND

REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation

In preparation for the initial public offering (“IPO”) and listing
(the “Listing”) of the Company’s shares on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group

underwent the Reorganisation which principally involved the

following steps:

(a)

On 10 January 2019, Brilliant Holdings Investment Group
Limited (“Brilliant Holdings”) was incorporated under
the laws of the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”) with limited
liability and was authorised to issue a maximum of 50,000
shares of a par value of United States dollar (“USD”) 1.00
each. Upon incorporation, one share of Brilliant Holdings
was allotted and issued at par and credited as fully paid to
Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited (“Defond HK").

On 10 January 2019 and 15 January 2019, Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”) and Grandview
Group Holdings Limited (“Grandview”) were respectively
incorporated under the laws of BVI and were authorised
to issue a maximum number of 50,000 shares of USD1.00
each. Upon incorporation, one share of USD1.00 was
allotted and issued at par by the each of the aforesaid
companies and credited as fully paid to Mr. Raymond Chu
and Mr. Wilson Chu respectively.

On 10 January 2019, Smartview Investments Limited
(“Smartview”) was incorporated under the laws of the
BVI with limited liability and was authorised to issue a
maximum of 50,000 shares of a par value of USD1.00 each.
Upon incorporation, two shares of Smartview were allotted
and issued at par and credited as fully paid, of which one
share was issued to Mr. Raymond Chu and one share was
issued to Mr. Wilson Chu respectively.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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1 —REMKEAEGE)
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(d) M2019F1A158 » KA ARHA
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1T GENERAL

INFORMATION AND

REORGANISATION (continued)

1.2 Reorganisation (continued)

(d) On 15 January 2019, the Company was incorporated in

the Cayman Islands with initial authorised share capital of
38,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each. Upon incorporation,
one share of the Company of HK$0.01 each was issued and
allotted to the initial subscribing shareholder. On the same
date, the subscriber share was transferred to Smartview at
par value.

On 31 January 2019, 679 shares, 160 shares and 160
shares of the Company were allotted and issued at par
and credited as fully paid to Smartview, Smart Union, and
Grandview respectively and the issued share capital of the
Company became HK$10 divided into 1,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each. As a result, Smartview, Smart Union, and
Grandview owned 68%, 16% and 16% equity interest of
the Company respectively.

On 19 March 2019, Brilliant Holdings acquired the entire
equity interest of Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“HK Wise
Ally”) from Defond HK. In consideration, Brilliant Holdings
issued and allotted one share to Defond HK.

On 13 December 2019, the Company acquired the entire
equity interest of Brilliant Holdings from Defond HK. In
consideration, as directed by Defond HK, the Company
issued and allotted 679,320 shares, 159,840 shares and
159,840 shares to Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview
respectively, in proportion to the respective then existing
shareholding of Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview in
the Company.

Upon completion of the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the companies comprising
the Group.
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2 ERETHEHE

BRESAVBHRRARAOEZESTEER
HNTX - lRRAHRBIN - ZFHRRRPT
2IMAFEERER -

otherwise stated.

2.1 RBEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

2.1 Basis of preparation

114

AEBEGEPBHRRIRBERLER
fhrg((EBEFMAE ) BEMNM
BEREEMHREEN(ERMBE
BEER ) REERRIGIIFE22ER
BEREHRME - AR BEHRRIZRE
SeRRAEBE S

RENETEVHREENNGEE Y
BHREABEFERETEANGFHER
NERARREENEAAEE SR
BERE(E L HE - 3 MBS E HE
HEFN - HEBR R ERETB
BRMEBEEN D ERME4RE

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2 ERETTHEHBEE)

2.1 fBEE ()

@@ AEEHEANCETER

AREBD 202051 81 BFHBH
FERE R E RN THEE
FTZER]

BREFERIE VR MBS ER
F85 2 IERT

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BAMBHREERFEINR 2IE5]
Amendments to HKFRS 3

BAGETHERE3955 -
BB mERERE 79 &
BB IwEER B 2 57T
Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

2018 F MBS REBDER
Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

$

f ng % ITE{ DT/EEIJ1E¥T$E
MEFBERERTIME
& - BAFHENHE -

]

Y
=

EFER R ARAR

20205 7R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(@) Amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following amended standards
for the first time for their annual reporting period beginning
1 January 2020:

FERHERE
Definition of Material

EBHER

Definition of a Business
RN E —FEEL

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 1

RIERT AT IS B SHEDR

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting

The adoption of these amended standards did not have any
significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
did not require retrospective adjustments.
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2 EXRETHEHEE)

2.1 fBEE ()

(b) A5 L 5K A 4 85 B4 4 10 37 3T
RATE TR

TEFE] RAEAEFT BN AL E
202051 A1 B 2B BREEE 8
HHB AR Ak B SR AN

BBV BMEERFE 1657 21E5]
Amendments to HKFRS 16

BB IEEwEERFEGR -
BB GETERIZE395E -
BB ImEERE7R -
BB WEARER B 45 &
BN WEERE 1658 2155]
Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

BB SEERIE 165 2185
Amendments to HKAS 16

BBSFERIE375 2155
Amendments to HKAS 37

AR REERIFEIR 2 ME5]
Amendments to HKFRS 3
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POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(b) New and amended standards issued but not yet adopted by

the Group

The following new and amended standards have been
issued but are not effective for the Group’s financial periods
beginning 1 January 2020 and have not been early adopted

by the Group:

A EAARSHBEHSER
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

MREAENE -2

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

MR - BB NaR i — R A& B 2 Pr1S50R
Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use

BEAKN-BITAKIRAR
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

BOER22E

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

RELT BB
oAt et

ZEEHBEEXR

Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after

2020%F6 A1H
1 June 2020

20211 H1H

1 January 2021

202241 H1H
1 January 2022

202251418
1 January 2022

20221 H1H
1 January 2022

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2020
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2 ERETTHEHBEE)

2.1 fBEE ()

(b) EEMEREREERANHET
R AZEET 2RI ()

FREBGERR

Annual Improvement Project

ERGTIERIEIRZIER]
Amendments to HKAS 1

BAMBHEEANE175R
HKFRS 17

BAN B WEERZE 109 &
ARG ERIFE 2857 2 55T

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

AEEBR LA EARRE
BB ZERT B T LARM - &
EBEECETILNG  BRHR
MR EERANRETR I EHAE
B B B TS AR S AR R AR AT
[BEZN-Z W

EFER R ARAR
20204 )

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New and amended standards issued but not yet adopted by
the Group (continued)

R B
o2 BB
ZEFHHIBEXK
Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after

B EMIEHEER|20185-20205F B H
ZEE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020 Cycle

20221 H1H
1 January 2022
BESBEAREIIETE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

2023%F1 418
1 January 2023

REEEH 20231418

Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

HEEHEEBENRHEEEZHN FEE
BEREIEE

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group will adopt the above new standard and
amendments to existing standards as and when they
become effective. Management has performed preliminary
assessment and does not anticipate any significant impact
on the Group’s financial position and results of operations
upon adopting these standard and amendments.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including a structured entity)

over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the

entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combination

Except for the Reorganisation upon Listing, the Group
applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combination (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amounts of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amounts
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amounts recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amounts for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
who makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

24.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

2.4.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

24.3 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that consolidated statement of financial
positions;

e income and expenses for each income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs, net of their
residual value, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term

and useful life of 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets

System software

Acquired system software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives of three years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets changes.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments to be measured at amortised costs.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

2.8.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and reward of ownership.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost are
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model. The Group
assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables from third parties and related parties, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the trade receivables from third parties
and related parties. The Group has assessed the expected credit
loss by considering historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking information.

For other receivables, the Group measures the impairment
as either twelve months expected credit losses or life-time
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
a significant increase in credit risk of the other receivables has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured
as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.11Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
material, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.13 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
cash on hand.

2.14Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.15Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and bills payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
interest expense over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amounts can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (continued)

(o)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

2.20 Employee benefits

(@)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

Long service payments

The Group’s net post-employment benefit obligation
in respect of long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong upon cessation of their employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefits that the
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(e) Long service payments (continued)

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
cost method, discounted to its present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributed to contributions made by the
Group. The discount rate is the yield at each balance sheet
date of Hong Kong Government’s Exchange Fund Notes
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liability. The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The current service cost of the long service payment
scheme, recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income reflects the increase in the long
service payment’s obligation as a result of employee service
in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements. Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the balance of the long service payment’s obligation.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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POLICIES (continued)
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2.21 Revenue recognition
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts for the sale of
goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s activity. Revenue
is shown net of returns and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customers and the payment by the customers exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending
on the relationship between the Group’s performance and
the customer’s payment. A contract asset is the Group’s right
to consideration in exchange for goods that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain
a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as
assets and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers the promised goods to the customer, the Group
presents the contract as a contract liability when the payment
is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier).
A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer the
promised goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for
the Group’s activity as described below:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods transferred at a point in time are recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the Group has
delivered the products to the customers and the customers have
accepted the products, the customers have full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
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2.22 Interest income
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Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.23 Leases

The Group leases various properties and plant and machinery.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
three months to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain various terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (included in
properties, plant and equipment) and the corresponding
liabilities at the date of which the respective leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Leases (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at costs comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
* restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. The useful life used for the assets’ depreciation
purpose is:
Properties Over the lease term

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases for properties, plant
and machinery with a lease term of less than 12 months. Low-
value assets comprise machinery with value below HK$5,000.

224 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the years in which the dividend is approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to expenses are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
expenses that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of properties, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amounts of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

3.1 Market risk
3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the USD.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, which are denominated
in these currencies.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the

Group has not entered into any derivative instruments to
hedge its foreign exchange exposures.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Market risk (continued)

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 0.5% against HK$, with all
other variables held constant, profit before income tax for
each year would have changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of USD denominated
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade and
other payables.

2020 2019
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3.1.2 Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its
pledged bank deposits, cash at banks and bank borrowings
with floating interest rates. Details of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents and bank
borrowings have been disclosed in Notes 17 and 25 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

Other than pledged bank deposits, cash at banks and bank
borrowings, the Group does not have significant interest-
bearing assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, if interest rates on
pledged bank deposits, cash at banks and bank borrowings
had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all variables
held constant, profit before income tax for the years ended
would have been approximately HK$135,000 (2019:
HK$591,000) lower/higher, mainly as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on the bank borrowings netted with
interest income on the pledged bank deposits and cash at
banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from pledged bank
deposits, cash at banks, trade and other receivables and
amounts due from related companies. The carrying amounts of
each financial asset represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, HK Wise Ally,
Rayson Innovations Limited (“Rayson”) and Defond HK (together,
the “borrowers”), entered into a joint bank facility under which
the borrowers provided cross guarantees as part of the securities.
If Rayson and Defond HK default on the repayment of their
respective utilised loans, the bank may demand HK Wise Ally to
settle the outstanding principals of their respective utilised loans
and any interests accrued thereon.

As disclosed in Note 25, securities for this bank facility
include certain properties owned by certain related companies
controlled by the Controlling Shareholders and the personal
guarantees of unlimited amounts provided by the Controlling
Shareholders (together, the “other securities”).

Under such circumstances, the Group will be able to rely on
these securities. In this regard, the directors consider that the
Group’s credit risk with respect to the maximum liability of the
Group that may be incurred under this guarantee, as disclosed
in Note 31(d), is effectively mitigated.

On 10 January 2020, the aforementioned arrangement was
released upon the Listing of the Group.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group’s pledged bank deposits and cash at banks were
deposited with high quality financial institutions. Therefore, the
Group does not expect any losses arising from non-performance
by these counterparties.

139



REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 HBERERGE)
3.2 5 &R (&)

140

L 2 ()

HZE2020F12 831 B IEFE - A&EE
W25 763% (20194 : 69%) KA E T
KEF o A20209F12 A31H » A&EE
hAAREBFEHERE FEWFIBEEE
#168%(20194F : 68%) °

BEEMBITER - RITRE REKEH
BARRENEERRER - BRZ
EFEFGFERRARFEEFRANR
7 AREEEEHITEHREZSE
BRRE T NE A MA B EAIEE -

@ EREERME

AEEREMBEREESTEY
FEEBBREARR

HEEMMKEE=7 KA
07 BB 5 RUGRR

o REHRAFTEMNHMSE R

ESEW R

AEEFBEBWHREERFI
BB LA EEBEERERE -
ZITEBLFT A B 5 R UYGR IR R
FENTEHEIRERE -

REITEEMEEER  BEZRNK
RAEERBEAZEERAREH M
BEARE D RR - BRI KRR
MARKRRERETIRBEBEED
BERMEF - YRBAEUARRIRA
MRANTENRTERPEBE
WORRIR RE 1) 1) R B AR T R R AU Al
AR -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 63% (2019: 69%) of
the Group’s revenue was derived from its top five customers.
As at 31 December 2020, 68% (2019: 68%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s top five customers.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, cash at banks and
amounts due from related companies are limited because
deposits are in banks with sound credit ratings and management
does not expect any loss from non-performance by these related
parties.

(@) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss models:

e trade receivables from third parties and related parties
from sales of goods

e other financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Future cash flows
for each group of receivables are estimated on the basis
of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the effects
of existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivable.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group and a failure to make contractual payments. As at
31 December 2020, certain customers who did not share
the same credit risk characteristics as the rest of the debtors
were in delinquency of payments and their respective
trade receivable balances amounting to approximately
HK$1,304,000 (2019: HK$1,556,000) were therefore fully
impaired.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Remaining trade receivables without known insolvencies
are collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer and its ageing
category, and applying the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated on the basis
of historical credit losses experienced, adjusted to reflect
the effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of loss allowance
in respect of these collectively assessed receivables was
approximately HK$152,000 (31 December 2019: Nil) based
on expected credit loss rates applied on different groupings.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

141



REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 HBERERGE)
3.2 5 &R (&)

142

R EE (&)

(a)

TREERE(E)

KB AT B R M2 B EE

AEBZEHEKAFENE S
MEEBRBARAMBIRRAE
) EL b 8 YRR R % FE UL B B 1 )
TR o IMEHA AT ENEM S
BMEENRMERETR12EAE
HEEEETE - 12 AREE
EEBEeRIARRERRER
HR12EARNBEENEZOEMAA
SIBMETERRNEERREN—
B - R ERELREER
AR IE IR - IR E TR
EEBRTERE -

20204 K2019F12 A318 © &
1 B R A H i B UGRIE K JFE UL 3
G ARFENEERBRRE R
AAERZHFERHANEHERTT
EHREREETNEEE S -
REBEZN2EABHEESE
VA BT A EL R AR SR TR % R Uk A B
REIRIENBEREEBEBYTE
RN Bt ZEHEBNBERE
BINE - B RER A -

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at amortised cost
include other receivables and amounts due from related
companies in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The impairment loss of other financial assets
carried at amortised cost is measured based on the twelve
months expected credit loss. The twelve months expected
credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that
results from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within twelve months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, management
considered the credit risk of other receivables and amounts
due from related companies to be low as counterparties
have a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed that
the expected credit losses for the other receivables and
amounts due from related companies were immaterial
under 12 months expected losses method. Therefore, the
loss allowance provision for these balances was close to
zero and no provision was recognised.
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3 HBERERGE)
33RBETER

AEENBRBENERRR LEH
MREESFZR - UBREREHAD
ReHEARNERARRRRSES

Fk o

2020512 A31 8 » REBFH AN
& RIBESEEBYWL H234,376,00078 7T
(20194 : 138,623,000/ 7T ) + T8 HA
AELARERANEERSDECER

AEBEBZRBIFHTRDES -
BREAEFEREHNTHMEE  BEK
BERAGERBEENETEE M
AEEGEEEAERBRETIEEE
RHERERIRE - AREEHEE
PRRTRNRTTES - EAGHEA B
FEELTEERREFESNER
1 WERKERA RS REER X
& o

R2020F12 A31 8 » "EEKIE
B4R 1T B B 49 A 165,717,000
B gt (2019 & : 239,008,000 /&
JT) c AR EE R AR IT R
& 49 /261,456,000 7% 7T (2019 4F
266,593,000/ 7T) °

TRINTAREGITESRABIRR
HEZIRAR - REHREHRES
B B ORISR BAREIT O

RARBNEBER/BARRRER
ERAKBEARERINNRTEH
H o RN FEY BN - &
1218 A AE| RHEOR A SR EERE(E

BEEFERERAR

20205 7R

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the shorter
and longer term.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$234,376,000 (2019:
HK$138,623,000), that are expected to be readily available to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources including
orderly realisation of short-term financial assets, receivables
and certain assets that the Group considers appropriate.
Long term financing including long-term borrowings are also
considered by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances, committed credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s total undrawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$165,717,000 (2019:
HK$239,008,000) and the Group’s total drawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$261,456,000 (2019:
HK$266,593,000).

The table below analyses the non-derivative financial liabilities
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table were the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Balances within twelve months equal their
carrying balances as impact from discounting is not significant.
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3 HBERERGE)

33nBETER(E)

144

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3

ARME  HRESRBREEGR
(SRTTA] 2AEBOIRTTE) HOSRTTHE X -
ZA TRBEA R B AER N RN R
F AR (B B SR T {8 L S G R
EWE R AN AR SRR SR

Liquidity risk (continued)

Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is
if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect.

REXREE PME 1855 EH
Repayable Less than Between

on demand Tyear  1and5 years Total
THET THERT TR TERT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

R2020512A31R At 31 December 2020
BHEMNTIE Trade payables - 180,228 = 180,228
HiENFIERESER Other payables and accruals - 68,096 - 68,096
HEBE Lease liabilities = 16,536 26,125 42,661
EEE Bills payables - 20,328 - 20,328
RITER Bank borrowings 263,157 = = 263,157
263,157 285,188 26,125 574,470

R2019%12A31R At 31 December 2019
BHEMNTIE Trade payables - 113,364 - 113,364
HinENFERESER Other payables and accruals - 60,622 - 60,622
HEERE Lease liabilities - 16,052 38,331 54,383
AN Bills payables - 30,399 - 30,399
FITER Bank borrowings 216,196 8,602 47,628 272,426
216,196 229,039 85,959 531,194

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 MKRREE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33RBESRESR(E)

3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

TRIAEBRITEFIRR A
HIER  REABREHRES OB
BERIREIREETOMN - L EEA
BRERERFRNTE -

The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the Group into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date
without taking into consideration the effect of repayment on
demand clause.

1EHUA 1225 2856 Bt
Within Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2and5 years Total
TET THET THT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20205124318 At 31 December 2020
PITIER Bank borrowings 245,926 6,430 10,801 263,157
R20195128318 At 31 December 2019
RITER Bank borrowings 224,798 29,808 17,820 272,426
34EAREE 3.4 Capital management

AEEEREANERRREREE
FECENE N  ARRRE KD
¥ o [FB AR B HEL b N 25 4 B8 A A R
& WHRRRENEREBUREER

BB LAREALE  AEELE
AREARRENHRASE - ARE
REE AT AR LRI R -

EFER R ARAR
20204 )

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3 BIKERERE(E)
3AEXREE(E)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.4 Capital management (continued)

3.5

146

REBIZRBREEHRERN L KEEE
BN o BEERRTTER - BE AR
AT BRI B o B
2020F }20194F12 A31 B E A EY
REARLEEINT ¢

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt represents bank borrowings. Total
capital represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The total debt to total capital
ratios at 31 December 2020 and 2019 were as follows:

2020 2019
TERT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BmE= Total borrowings 261,456 266,593
BrER Total equity 137,705 52,155

Total debt to total capital ratio

1.9 times & 5.1 times &

BEEHBEARLER2019F12 H31
BRI5.115m A E2020%F12 A31 B
1.9fF  FERRRERFEZE20205F
12A31BIEFERARBEEETRG
Mg InFETER °

AL

MR20209F 2019512 A31H » AEE
RERE W BN R I BAERA R FE
ﬁg%mﬂé&ji BEE-

AEERBEMEELRBDERE
) B T B R EL 1A A8 B 7 B A B
FERE - FRBDEREEKIE
imﬁlﬁtﬁﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁfﬁi/
AAREENHERE

Hﬂi\m t@ﬁ Dk

=
JIL
=3
M

The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from 5.1 times as
at 31 December 2019 to 1.9 times as at 31 December 2020 was
mainly due to the increase in total equity as a result of issuance
of shares for public offering during the year ended 31 December
2020.

3.5 Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have
any financial assets or financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position which were measured at fair
value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets and
current financial liabilities, approximated their fair values due
to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of non-current
financial assets and non-current financial liabilities approximate
their fair values which are estimated based on the discounted
cash flows.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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4 BARSTHETRERR

fEET A REBELBR I EMRAR(E
EREREBEATRARBEENRKEMHTR
HR) R BT -

AR BEIRRAE L Z IR RRE - RIB
EE - RHEENE A RISERRH
ERBERBEN - AERRREBERT—
B BEEHEERABRAEERER
AEOE RERRmAIAT

41 FERNFAEZRE

FEBRA R # R EREHRE
EHRR - FERFAIBRERAER
BRR TP EET EEMEGRT T IK
ARHEFX - ZFHATHERER
LA R BUE M E B LEE E m e
PBELREL - EEERSHEHR
ERRHERIART ©

4.2 Fri88t

AEBIZEBTERTRAKME
B EEEMSHBEBRAFELEAN
A - EBEERBIET - ZTARS
KT B REBRIAEE L TEAME © i
ZEFENREBRBEREZIAR
MEBEIR - ZEERHETEEL
B RAEE RS HR REERSH
YR

BN EEER SR A AR RERT G
MAEEHEEREZRAHIASE
BHEABRE TEREZRRNEARE
BOELEMSREE - HEMERA
ERIFEER  ZFEBRHETE

AT EPRENELEHAFIREE N
U IE A S HERR ©

BFERERERAR
20204F 3

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and tax expense in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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4 BARSTTEFTRMER(E) 4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

4.3 EWFRIERE

AEBRIEARAENR LR AHEIE
TR R IREBGIBRERE - &
SENMEHZEMREITEAE - X
REASERSREHRNBEED
#x - WITHIHARR LATE LGS
PERRORER ENBABR o B5l
& Wk TR RL (B8 8 A H i e (5T o 1
BHERAGHFEEE  REEH
HeFER ARG 2B MEER
P JFEE USRI T % R MK 3k TR R S

8.

Wz & 2 #BE #

ARB/—FREZEBRARRAEE T E
NEEFEMBERHE -

TERERRECHETERARAITHAE
B o THAREHAKEN AR E AR
ERBARDEER - (TRAEHCREZS

8

TRAERCHEAEERAEENEE -
WEEAEEREE —E 2HREEDE -
FIEFEMBLENMIHE -

HA

TR ARRIR S M EMNNFTEF GRS
7 BRI ©

HE2020F &2019F 12 A31HILEFE -
AEBERMMBEREREETFEIINEG
4 WRNE—EREEHER - AEURER
JEFTBURFIBR2MME2.21 -
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ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
4.3 Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's historical default rates, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment of
receivables recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CODM has been identified as the CEO of the Company. The
CEO reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CEO has determined the
operating segment based on these reports.

The CEO considers the Group’s operation from a business
perspective and determines that the Group has one reportable
operating segment being manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segment based
on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all of the
Group’s revenues were from contracts with customers and were
recognised at a point in time. Please refer to Note 2.21 for details of
accounting policies on revenue recognition.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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5 REkoHER(E) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

@ REFERF (HERNEREE (@) Revenue from major customers who have
EAWFEN10% L L) ik individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group

2020 2019

THET THET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BPA Customer A 154,134 273,967

=FB Customer B 138,572 N/A* N3 A *

BFEC Customer C N/A* RiE f* 156,327

EFD Customer D 87,601 113,095
* MHEREFRARFEYEERAEEL *  The corresponding customers did not contribute over 10% of the

Wz B31B10% © total revenue of the Group for the denoted years.

(b) ZBEFHEBMLER S D FUK (b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
=

location
AEERMEBUE(ERRINUESE The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
E)EIDHER T determined by the delivery location, is as follows:
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=35 United States 439,680 565,412
R United Kingdom 96,706 207,606
ﬁﬁ‘%%ﬁ Ireland 71,517 35,762
JEREE Philippines 59,412 _
Fh The PRC 33,292 24,904
BB Hong Kong 20,812 55,061
EAtw (F5E) Others (Note) 98,084 92,099
819,503 980,844
E Note:
HMEZREGBRMNEBR(WEDESD X Others mainly include (i) European countries such as Estonia, France,
CEE - BAF - W WA WA RIs Germany, Italy, Netherlands, Norway, Sweden and Switzerland; and
1) RGipEN - BEH - iigX - BE - 8 (i) Australia, Belize, Canada, India, Korea, Malaysia, Mexico, New
- SRETE - BT - WA FIK A Zealand, Singapore, Taiwan and Vietnam.
BERBERARAT
202043 : 149
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5 WsEkoSER (&)

() ENEEFE

(continued)

(c) Details of contract liabilities

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

2020 2019
FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHaE(MITE23a) Contract liabilities (Note 23(a)) 22,257 -

e

BHERERENRREETEPNE
iR P YR TR R

(i) REITBROED

R2020F12 8318 » AEBHKETH
EHBHERIRERBETHERTE—
FREH - At - RIBEBMIEHREE
BIZ1SREAERERZEHRE - »
REZSEABTROEFNRZEEL
R o

) BBV ESTNHERDEE

72020 201912 A31H » A&EE
ERHEERTECRLERIBEERIN)

Notes:

() Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received from
the customers for goods of which the controls have not yet been

transferred to the customers.

(i) Unsatisfied performance obligation

As at 31 December 2020, all performance obligations not yet
satisfied by the Group were from contracts with original expected
duration of less than one year. Therefore, as permitted by the
relevant practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied performance obligations was not

disclosed.

(d) Non-current assets by geographical location

The total amounts of non-current assets, other than deferred

tax assets, of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 are

fIR AT - located in the following regions:
2020 2019
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Y Hong Kong 11,219 15,072
F The PRC 92,230 96,944
103,449 112,016
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6 EMBIEDTHFAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
STAHEKA « HE M HFE X A RIT Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses,
A ke EERBESENRASISOT administrative expenses and impairment losses on financial assets

are analysed as follows:

2020 2019
FTERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT R H Raw materials used 529,363 602,873
EERAKARANEIR Employee benefit costs and manpower service
AR5 (F15E8) expenses (Note 8) 160,770 195,357
EMEE12) Depreciation (Note 12) 33,066 31,412
B35 (FIRE13) Amortisation (Note 13) 2,112 1,614
BEHERYENEHEER Rental expenses of short-term leases in respect
MMz (HFE19(0) of machineries and properties (Note 19(c)) 912 925
W/ NN Y53 Electricity, water and utility expenses 5,764 6,885
HEME X Sales commission expenses 17,766 23,442
FEM Consumables 7,013 7,724
HiE LR Freight and custom declarations 8,362 8,947
HIERIRE Repair and maintenance 1,631 2,164
HBER Subcontracting fee 8,928 2,783
HmFiia Other taxes 4,181 6,265
Bl b3 Listing expenses - 17,347
HihEXER Other professional fees 4,238 1,670
WAERX Office expenses 1,295 1,408
ZEEB 2 Auditor’s remuneration
— ARG (TEIEETWREY) - Audit services (excluding listing expense) 1,945 1,862
RITFEE Bank charges 1,244 1,738
IRk Insurance 1,521 1,232
mE Telecommunications 1,219 1,442
FERERR (H3E16) Reversal of impairment of inventories (Note 16) = (409)
B HRIRIER EEE Provision for impairment of trade
(PfF5E18) receivables (Note 18) 1,456 -
Hith Others 6,996 5,991
PHERA - HER DRI« Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
THRASXIARCREE expenses, administrative expenses and
RIBE B R impairment losses on financial assets 799,782 922,672
ore) R [BX toe [ INE
ii)ﬁ;& ERBR AR 1 5 1
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7 HtFEHREREMEA 7 OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME
(@) HitFEE (a) Other losses, net
2020 2019
THERT FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEWE - BE & Losses on disposal of properties,
HAEHEE plant and equipment (731) (2,291)
bE R (B18), Exchange (losses)/gains (9,100) 522
ME B EE Gain on lease modification 2 -
9,829) (1,769)
(b) Efyr A (b) Other income
2020 2019
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Government grants 4,800 1,348
Hopth (P7E) Other (Note) - 5,502
4,800 6,850
Bt &3 Note:

REE2019F12 A31BILFE » AR E—
FARFHNEBBERRILE  NEBEREEE
5,502,000 7T« FEZARERIES T BE W
MERER LR ASEREEENS TER
EfE o
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During the year ended 31 December 2019, due to the termination
of business relationship with a former customer, the Group received
compensation amounting to HK$5,502,000, primarily for handling of
certain excess materials and the cross-border transfer of certain product
equipment previously consigned in the Group’s premises.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8 EEEAMAZRADERKRE 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND MANPOWER

fix  BREREENE

SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS

2020 2019
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
T& - #Hekita Wages, salaries and bonus 140,573 166,343

RRE KA - RER-K Pension costs — defined contribution
BELGEDY) schemes (Note a) 11,571 20,002
Hin B T1aF Other staff welfares 8,513 6,954

BEBENRXZ Total employee benefit expenses

(BIEESEHH) (including directors’ remunerations) 160,657 193,299
ANERARF 2 (FiFEb) Manpower service expenses (Note b) 113 2,058
160,770 195,357

=

(@)

BARERA — REAREE
&8
RRBFIRA — SUE RS

AEEELTHERBREE 2 MRHMEATE S
B([BEETE ] —EHEBUZTATED
ARERKETED) - BREBESE - AEB K
HESRESWACERRBHIMEATESED)
25%F ARGTEVELHER - AEBREESN
SEHEEFII AT B 1,500 LA LR -

=)

1ZIRAP BEARRIR A SRR - ARERTE
BENMBRRALEESAEREANRNK
FHEIEHHR - RFEBBRRMNFPEE N RE
BRI TVEE @ B A RAEL B AR
SETAESLHHN - BYEE—SHEERZ
FSHFIMERARE IERRRBAEHERX
- ZEEREBRRKG BB BRRNRKE
BMEERASERIE °

HZE2020F12A31BLLEEE - ExmANE
BAASRERE EM - KR2020F2AZ6A
AR - RS AT A AL - /NI RS B RR A
MEZHRARS « RERTHRBEIHIKAN
50% ©

EFER R ARAR

20205 7R

Notes:

(@)

Pensions costs — defined contribution plans
Hong Kong
Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the
employees” mandatory contributions were subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month.

The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. Depending on the provinces of
the employees’ registered residences and their current region of work,
the subsidiary contributes certain percentages of the basic salaries of
its employees and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau of Dongguan Municipality has announced
that all micro, small and medium size enterprises in Dongguan were
exempt from 50% of employer contributions to pension, unemployment
and work-related injury insurance schemes from the period between
February and June 2020.
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8 EEEAEXIRANDERRI 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES AND MANPOWER

X BRESHME(A)

SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

sk : (48) Notes: (continued)

(b) ADERRHEREXZ (b) Manpower service expenses

HZE2020F %2019F 12 A31HIEFE » A%
BEEHRPEINIANERREEELET
ANERRE L - BBEZELH - ZSHE
EhERBEARE TAEEETAFE XK
METIR A A 7B IR B FA R RIS 178 B e B
7B ZERASEREREHA LIRS

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group
entered into certain manpower service arrangements with several
external manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these
arrangements, certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were
fulfilled by these organisations at agreed service fees whereas the human
resources provided were directly employed by the relevant service

BiEE EERERAE - organisations. The individuals providing services to the Group do not
have any employment relationship with the Group.

(0 HEZEHMAL (c) Five highest paid individuals

HZE2020F12A318LFE @ AEBRER
RHMATEEMBESR(2019F : WE=E
F)  ENS RAEN 31 2T HTH o &
FE2020F12A31BIEFE - BB T=8A
+(2019F : =BAT)WESLT :

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include 2 directors for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 2
directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 31. The emoluments payable to the remaining 3 individuals for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 3 individuals) are as follows:

2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
I8 - Frekits Wages, salaries and bonus 4,355 5,554
RRS AR — FE RS Pension costs — defined contribution plans 54 54
4,409 5,608
e EENT The emoluments fell within the following bands:
A
Number of individuals
2020 2019
MesE Emolument bands
1,000,001 721,500,000/ T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2 -
1,500,001 7L E 2,000,000/ 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
3 3

HE2020F %2019F12 A31 B IEFE - A&
EERT A ESR R RETHALTIAE
AT BN <2 1 755 00 BE =X 72 N BE 7 52 [ B 1 A8 B =k 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

RBERAEIE - compensation for loss of office.
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9 FRERA 9 FINANCE COSTS, NET
2020 2019
FER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITE A WA Interest income on bank deposits (783) (69)
SRITERFER Interest expenses on bank borrowings 9,055 15,742
TEBEN ST (MEFE19(b)) Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 19(b)) 2,925 3,620
[ELF=ND N Finance costs 11,980 19,362
FRLE AR Finance costs, net 11,197 19,293
EERRZERAR AR
w00%EH 155
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10 FTBHiRE X

HZE2020F 12 A31HILEE - AEBES
BB AR ERSEREENEHZ
A o BE2019F12A31 B IEFE - S
FIERABEE G ERTRF IR =R
16.5%zTHE °

HE2020F N2019F12 A31HIEFE -
ANEBEF BN E R R ERIZER K
25%B M FTER ([ REFREBH]) -

HZE2020F12A31BIEFE - FARFTR
FP B () L 3B HNIR R =T A A% B U 5% FE 40
o

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s subsidiary
in Hong Kong has no assessable profit under Hong Kong profits tax.
During the year ended 31 December 2019, Hong Kong profits tax
has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group's
subsidiary in the PRC is subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a
standard rate of 25%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a 5% withholding tax
was levied on dividend declared by the Company in the PRC to its
foreign shareholder.

2020 2019
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BUEA Fr 1884 Current income tax
— ARG - PRCCIT _ 4,201
—HEMNEH — Hong Kong profits tax - 6,151
- 10,352
BAFEREETR,(HBEEEE) Under/(over)-provision in prior year
— B EFTISE —-PRCCIT 30 -
—BBEFERH — Hong Kong profits tax (193) (623)
(163) (623)
BERFTS i 4a%E Total current income tax (163) 9,729
BB R (M15E20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) 2,207 841
IRy Income tax expense 2,044 10,570
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10 FREBFZ (&) 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
ANE B B ET SR A& I AR IE A B A FE The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
BEARASB RN B A )% F A INEFEH theoretical amounts that would arise using the weighted average tax
MERFAEAMIERSENT ¢ rate applicable to profits of subsidiaries of the Group as follows:
2020 2019
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Br TSR A& Al Profit before income tax 3,495 43,960
RERP RN E A R Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to
AR R E TR profits of the respective subsidiaries 710 11,496
ATIEE MREE Tax effect of:
BB IA Income not subject to tax (760) (24)
AR X Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 330 685
SR ST B I AR FE R Y Recognition of temporary difference
TR ERE previously not recognised 2,846 -
REREIIR R & Effect of PRC withholding tax (35) -
HEERF R Research and development tax credit (884) (964)
BT EEBEERE Over-provision in prior year (163) (623)
Figfim= Income tax expense 2,044 10,570
MEFEERAFERLIEES  TERRNE The changes in the weighted average applicable tax rate were
BREREPRCEMSHBAREST mainly due to the changes in the proportion of the taxable profit
HEEDIE T BRI BIla = ETE - under Hong Kong profits tax and PRC CIT which were subject to

different applicable tax rates.

B ZE2020F 12 A31 B IEFENBRETXE The increase in effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December
== Z R B E R R A R E B & 2020 was mainly due to the recognition of deferred tax liabilities in
ERELERIARE - respect of the unremitted earnings in PRC subsidiary.

BEEFERERAR

20205 7R 1 5 7
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11 ERER

SR A BT T AR A D FME R AR
165538 IR DA 2E PO L 34T 3 AR A 49
B -

RETEHE2020F &X2019F 12 A31H 1
FERS BB ZITH L E R INETHE
BE - 1,500,000,000 % 3 38 J% (£ 51 & M =E
26(a) FTE 202041 A10HETHE R
BT RIBEM 125 EA TR
PR EE20195F1 B1BED T -

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares
deemed to be in issue during the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019, 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares, after taking into account
the capitalisation issue that took place on 10 January 2020 as set out
in Note 26(a) and the issue of shares pursuant to the Reorganisation
as detailed in Note 1.2, were deemed to have been issued since 1
January 2019.

BZ12A318LLEE

Year ended 31 December

2020 2019
RAFIERFTE AEEFEA Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
wA(FAET) of the Company (HK$’000) 1,451 33,390
BTS2 htE Weighted average number of ordinary
FHHFE) shares in issue ('000) 1,987,705 1,500,000
FRREARREERF OBM) Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 0.07 2.23

HRFERETEETEINEEEETER

B EREANETRN 2 WA EEEE -
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There were no differences between the basic and diluted earnings
per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020



e MR EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12 9% - BERRE

12 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENE B £ER BER
FREEE £ BARE Hes RE @t
Furniture,
fixtures
Right-of-use Leasehold and office Plant and Motor
assets improvements  equipment  machinery vehicles Total
AT AL AL AL AT AT
HK$/000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000
201951818 At 1 January 2019
B Cost 93,349 41,896 18,572 89,419 2,961 246,197
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (35,145) (31,417) (10,090) (41,519) (1,020) (119,191)
FEYE Net book amount 58,204 10,479 8,482 47,900 1,941 127,006
BZ2019F Year ended 31 December 2019
128310 LEE
R FE Opening net book amount 58,204 10,479 8,482 47,900 1,941 127,006
RE Additions - 601 2,503 10,821 - 13,925
e Depreciation (14,004) (2,665) (2,739) (12,769) (632) (32,809)
He Disposals - 17) (1,090) (1,437) - (2,544)
[ENES Exchange differences (703) (96) (96) (762) (12) (1,669)
BREEFE Closing net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
R2019E128318 At 31 December 2019
A Cost 91,939 41,486 18,643 95,353 2,926 250,347
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (48,442) (33,184) (11,583) (51,600) (1,629) (146,438)
EEYE Net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
HZ20205F Year ended 31 December 2020
12A31ALEE
HREFE Opening net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
RE Additions 3,383 54 2,195 13,056 - 18,688
wE Depreciation (14,590) (2,593) (2,489) (12,003) (535) (32,210)
& Disposals (71) = (326) (522) - (919)
ERER Exchange differences 1,248 148 202 1,662 12 3,272
HBAEREE Closing net book amount 33,467 5,911 6,642 45,946 774 92,740
#2020E128318 At 31 December 2020
A Cost 91,066 43,015 20,831 106,096 3,002 264,010
ZEirE Accumulated depreciation (57,599) (37,104) (14,189) (60,150 (2,228) (171,270)
EEFE Net book amount 33,467 5,911 6,642 45,946 774 92,740

B E2020F 12 A31HIEFE  TERY
#78,740,0007%8 7T (20194 : 8,669,00075
J0) B T 2 0Bk & 4924,326,00078 7T
(20194F : 22,743,000/ 70 ) B4 E AR A

Rk -

EFER R ARAR
20204 )

During the year ended 31 December 2020, depreciation expenses
of approximately HK$8,740,000 (2019: HK$8,669,000) have
been charged in administrative expenses and approximately
HK$24,326,000 (2019: HK$22,743,000) have been charged in cost
of sales respectively.
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13 EBLEE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RinEH
System
Software
FAT
HK$’000
R20195F1A1H At 1 January 2019
RN Cost 2,571
REtiEy Accumulated amortisation (643)
FREDHE Net book amount 1,928
HZE2019F12A31HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2019
HAYIAREDFE Opening net book amount 1,928
=T Additions 3,124
o5 (P 5E6) Amortisation (Note 6) (1,614)
HAR RN FAE Closing net book amount 3,438
M2019%12A831H At 31 December 2019
RN Cost 5,695
RETEH Accumulated amortisation (2,257)
FREDHE Net book amount 3,438
HZE2020F12831HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2020
HRWIER A FE Opening net book amount 3,438
NE Additions 1,134
#35(Miste) Amortisation (Note 6) 2,112)
HRCRERMFE Closing net book amount 2,460
R2020512A31H At 31 December 2020
RN Cost 6,829
BT Accumulated amortisation (4,369)
FREDHE Net book amount 2,460

HZE2020F12 A31HIEEE @ #HHFEILH
2,112,000% 7T (20194 : 1,614,000/ 7))

ERTRFA IR -
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation expenses
of approximately HK$2,112,000 (2019: HK$1,614,000) has been

charged in administrative expenses.
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14 RERESTWEMTE

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

REBERATENESREE
Financial assets carried
at amortised cost

2020 2019
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FEMBRRRATEE Assets as per consolidated statement of

financial position
B S EMKRIE (H5E18) Trade receivables (Note 18) 255,800 203,375
e RHAEWRIE(KI5E15) Deposits and other receivables (Note 15) 2,848 2,426
fEYL BB N B FOE(MFEE30)  Amounts due from related companies (Note 30) - 2,932
EEMRITFER(HIFE17) Pledged bank deposits (Note 17) = 10,000
Ba RIRSEEY(MIFE17)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 234,376 138,623
493,024 357,356
REHERATENEREE

Financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost

20205 7R

2020 2019
THET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEMBRRARARERE Liabilities as per consolidated statement of
financial position
Z SR B (MEE21) Trade payables (Note 21) 180,228 113,364
EAb R SRIE R ESTE A Other payables and accruals (Note 23)

(Pif7E23) 68,096 60,622
HEaEFEFE19) Lease liabilities (Note 19) 38,785 47,951
e A5 (M95E22) Bills payables (Note 22) 20,328 30,399
FERTREEE 2 2150 E(F93E30)  Amount due to a related company (Note 30) 126 -
RITHER(EE25) Bank borrowings (Note 25) 261,456 266,593

569,019 518,929
BEBRERAR AR 1 61
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15 FNRMIE - REREMERRK

15 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

18 RECEIVABLES
2020 2019
FExT FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEENERE Non-current portion
Be Deposits 1,707 1,309
WHEMIZ - B REEN Prepayments for acquisition of properties,
TERIE plant and equipment 6,542 3,360
8,249 4,669
BNHAER 7 Current portion
TEfFR08 Prepayments 4,598 2,368
Ze (Miita) Deposits (Note a) 311 102
EofpE YR IE 2 AT U ElE(E R Other tax receivables and VAT recoverable 5,180 1,830
E e Y skI8 (M sFab) Other receivables (Notes a and b) 830 1,015
IRIE_ET R (FiEEc) Deferred listing expenses (Note c) = 7,475
10,919 12,790
19,168 17,459
BEE Notes:
(@) H2020FEK2019F12A31H @ IHE& M EME (@) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of deposits

K A B T B L A AR o

and other receivables approximated their fair values.

(b) ZELTREER  RERARERESR - (b) The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
(0 RE LR AEE EHELSRARER L (c) The deferred listing expenses were incurred in connection with the
Mgz P HIA - listing of the Group and were deducted from equity upon the listing of

the Group.
REENRS R EMERFIRNREEZA TEE The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other receivables were
FHE denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019

FExT FHET

HK$’000 HK$’000

ARBTARED Renminbi (“RMB”) 1,674 1,213

BT HK$ 1,174 1,213

2,848 2,426
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16 78 16 INVENTORIES
2020 2019
THET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
Rk Raw materials 87,720 76,886
+ X Work in progress 16,485 7,735
FPK an Finished goods 31,749 42,257
135,954 126,878
BEZE2020F12A31BILFE  BRR The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
AW ABEEXNEIANTFEXNEADN A of sales during the year ended 31 December 2020 amounted to
651,325,000 7T (20194 : 748,203,000 approximately HK$651,325,000 (2019: HK$748,203,000).
BIT) e
HZE2020F12 A31HILFE @ BIEEFE No impairment of inventories (2019: Reversal of impairment of
RIE (20195 « FEIREREE£1409,00078 inventories amounting to approximately HK$409,000) was charged
TOR B HBRALET AT HERA] o to profit or loss and included in “cost of sales” during the year ended

31 December 2020.

17HERBAELZEYRESEMIE 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

TER BANK DEPOSITS
2020 2019
THET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITRE Cash at banks 234,263 138,395
FHERE Cash on hand 113 228
RERBEEEYD Cash and cash equivalents 234,376 138,623
EERIRITER Pledged bank deposits = 10,000
234,376 148,623
EaEERBR Maximum exposure to credit risk 234,263 148,395
2020512 4318 @ BIERTEK(2019 As at 31 December 2020, no bank deposits (2019: HK$10,000,000)
£ 10,000,00058 7T ) B H ABS SR 1T R were pledged for the facilities granted by banks to the Group, details
REBEHROFE - FIEHRMIEE25 - of which are set out in Note 25.
BEBRERAR AR
2000F% : 163
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17HERRLZEEBYREEEIE 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

T (&) BANK DEPOSITS (continued)
RebReEEYRGEaBRERERMNE Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purposes of
BIELATIER - the consolidated statement of cash flows:
2020 2019
TET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ReENREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 234,376 138,623
AREERE MIRESEBYMA LB EBRRIT The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
FRHBREEN T E%HE ¢ and pledged bank deposits were denominated in the following
currencies:
2020 2019
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
N RMB 12,668 6,657
eV usD 181,553 48,580
BT HK$ 40,103 93,334
HAit Others 52 52
234,376 148,623
IRITIRSIRIBEET B IR1TE A RIE)Z B Bt Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank
B8 o 7020204 K2019%12 A31H - deposits rate. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying
RekESEBMHNKREERER A FEE amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair values.
% o
202012 A31H » AEENERE LR As at 31 December 2020, cash and cash equivalents of the Group
S EEBWH 512,619,000/ 7T (20194 : amounting to approximately HK$12,619,000 (2019: HK$6,487,000),
6,487,000 7C) © FRF BIBARIEIT were deposited with the banks in the PRC where the remittance of
i 5 & & B H B 52 o B R P 2 A O M funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
EHIAR R FOERPAARR © exchange control promulgated by the government of the PRC.
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18 & Z WA 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2020 2019

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

=) e Trade receivables 257,256 204,931

B B SRR R ERE Less: provision for impairment of trade

receivables (1,456) (1,556)

255,800 203,375
2020 2201912 831 H - BZEI As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of trade

FIAMBREERE A HERS

AEEHENEERNFI5E120R TS -

receivables approximated their fair values.

The Group’s sales are made on credit terms ranging from 15 to 120
days.

R2020F & 2019F 12 A31H - EF Rkl As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of trade
HIE(BE:HEE ) IRZEE QBN ERBR DT receivables, net of impairment, based on invoice date, were as
T follows:
2020 2019
FET FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E90X 0to 90 days 241,248 170,909
91E365K 91 to 365 days 12,107 29,456
365K E Over 365 days 2,445 3,010
255,800 203,375

M2020F12 A31H

REBBERRE -

BFERERERAR
20204F 3

© 4930,004,0003% 7T
(20194F : 51,097,000/ 7T ) I & 5 FE U =X

As at 31 December 2020, trade receivables amounting to
approximately HK$30,004,000 (2019: HK$51,097,000) were past
due but not impaired.
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18 EZEWNFIE(E) 18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
B HRIIAREREE BE8NT Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables

were as follows:

2020 2019
THET THETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA) At beginning of the year 1,556 1,556
B 5 RIGRIRR B Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(R ERIEZE) on an individual basis 1,304 _
B 5 W IER B B Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(= —E%E) on a collective basis 152 -
b Gz Written-off (1,556) -
RER At end of the year 1,456 1,556
AEENE S RYGIENREEATIIE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables were
WEHE - denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
THET THETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ETT usD 244,042 190,212
BT HK$ 1,893 8,639
BT EURO - 40
AR RMB 9,865 4,484
255,800 203,375
2020F K2019F 12 A31HNZEEE The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2020 and
Rk A XAl E S5 EWFIER ERE(E © 2019 was the carrying value of the trade receivables mentioned
AR A AR fE AR o above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
166 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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19 #HE
(@) RESHBRARERANTIE

A MBIRRRIIRIA T HERBR
B iRt AR 12[% - BER

19 LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases and that the balances were

& included in Note 12 “Properties, plant and equipment”:
2020 2019
FET TAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERAEEE Right-of-use assets
L7ES Properties 33,467 43,497
HZE2020F12A31HLEFE - AEF There were additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to

A ¥ & EE 3,383,000 78 7T (2019 4F

HK$3,383,000 during the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:

) - nil).
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
HESE Lease liabilities
IEMBNEL Non-current portion 24,489 34,737
mENEL Current portion 14,296 13,214
38,785 47,951
BEERERARAT
202064 167
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19 HE (&) 19 LEASES (continued)

@ REEH BT RERNRE (@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
(#&) of financial position (continued)
AEBNHEEABENEREN NS The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were
WEHE - denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 619 4,263
AR RMB 38,166 43,688
38,785 47,951
(b) REEEEWERERNIE (b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income
EARXEWRRITATHSHEBER The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the
18 : following amounts relating to leases:
2020 2019
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EAEEENERX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
L7ES Properties 14,590 14,004
HEmERA (M) Finance costs on leases (Note 9) 2,925 3,620
WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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19 FHE (&)

() RREREMERERNIE (c) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement

19 LEASES (continued)

of cash flows

HZE2020F X% 201912 A31 8 IEF The total cash outflows for leases during the years ended 31
B EEEENARSRENT December 2020 and 2019 were as follow:
2020 2019
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000

RETDELENRERE

Cash flows from operating activities

BRANTEIER Payments for short-term leases
REAMRENK in respect of:
— W Z*(Fizte) — Properties* (Note 6) 912 872
— BB K =g+ (Pff3te6) — Plant and machinery* (Note 6) - 53
METEHELNRLSHRE  Cash flows from financing activities
YNHEEAEZ Payment of interest element of lease
FEFBH (K1Er9) liabilities (Note 9) 2,925 3,620
XNEEaEZ A Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities 13,925 11,918
17,762 16,463
* BRHEENRUREBZ5 - ERAE *  Payments for short-term leases were not shown separately, but
BORRT ABKI 27 R 25K L EER included in the line of “profit before income tax” in respect of the
FREBRNBRASTHEDERN THE A - net cash generated from operations which were presented in Note

EFER R ARAR

20205 7R

27(a) using the indirect method.
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20 IELEFFEH 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

A RBIRRRATFRBEATIER ¢

The amounts shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position include the following:

2020 2019

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEREFRIBE B Deferred tax assets 5,068 5,078
EEFRIBBAG Deferred tax liabilities (1,164) -
EEFHIBEE Deferred tax assets, net 3,904 5,078

EIEFHIREE 2 ZET

The movements on net deferred tax assets were as follows:

2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
B1ATA At 1 January 5,078 6,010
WiraEERER Charged to the consolidated statement of
IR (FIET0) comprehensive income (Note 10) (2,207) (841)
FRAR Payment during the year 840 -
PEH =% Exchange differences 193 91)
M12A31H At 31 December 3,904 5,078
170 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RIEFTERH(E) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
HZE2020F KX2019%F 12 A31BIEFEE -
EIEFIA & EE R S E) (REFT R HE R
ERVAEBAMESRHRE) DT

The movement in deferred tax assets during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:

]
EEER
B HESE HEER @5t
Right-of-use
assets and
lease
Provisions liabilities Tax losses Total
FHT FHT FHET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2019F1R81H At 1 January 2019 5,407 603 - 6,010
WiFe 2 HKRE (Charged)/credited to the
(F0%),/ AR consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (1,362) 521 - (841)
PE 5 =58 Exchange differences (71) (20) - (91)
720198 12A31HK At 31 December 2019 and
202041 818 1 January 2020 3,974 1,104 - 5,078
Rize&2EBEE (Charged)/credited to the
($0B%) / NBE consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (1,348) 168 1,769 589
X =5 Exchange differences 104 50 39 193
72020412 A31H At 31 December 2020 2,730 1,322 1,808 5,860

R TBE = ) A FE R BRI 2 A A gk
ERAREFH A ERMBLATAEE 2 7]
AR IERER © 722020912 A31H » K
EEWEREMBERXRERRLERBEEE -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not have other material
unrecognised deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2020.

FRIFEBRARAR
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20 JEFEFR{SH (&) 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
B E2020F %2019 12 A31HIEFE - The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years ended
EETTE B BN EE) (R&ET MK SEMERE 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking into consideration
ERVAEBAMAEHRHRE) T the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:
IERBIIEITE REE HZF st
Accelerated tax Unremitted

depreciation earnings Total

FA&T FHT THET

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

20191418 » At 1 January 2019, 31 December
201912 A31H & 2019 and 1 January 2020
202061 H1H - . _

Rigd2mkzsRIE  Charged to the consolidated

statement of comprehensive

income (387) (2,409) (2,796)
P53 Ik BB A 7 Reversal of deferred income tax
M1 B R AE liabilities upon distribution of
FrERiaE profits from PRC subsidiary - 840 840
72020912 H31H At 31 December 2020 (387) (1,569) (1,956)
R2020%12 8318 » R B R RIAKE As at 31 December 2020, total unremitted earnings of PRC
2 F 4288 4) /531,380,000 7T.(20194F subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$31,380,000 (2019:
48,872,000/ 7T) ° HK$48,872,000).
172 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21 EZRNFE 21 TRADE PAYABLES
2020 2019
FTExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=) ANE Trade payables 180,228 113,364
2020 %2019 €12 A318 - BFFER As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of trade
FHIBREE B ERBRER ST T payables, based on invoice date, were as follows:
2020 2019
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0290K 0 to 90 days 168,145 98,251
91£365 X 91 to 365 days 7,994 10,859
365 KA L Over 365 days 4,089 4,254
180,228 113,364
REBEZ S EMNTBENEREN TN S5 The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were
A - denominated in the following currencies:
2020 2019
THExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT HK$ 22,693 13,095
eV usD 62,282 50,892
NS RMB 93,968 48,061
Hith Others 1,285 1,316
180,228 113,364
20204 2019512 A318 » B EN As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of trade
FORRBREEE AN TEES ° payables approximated their fair values.
BFBRZERAR AR
200055 173
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22 ENRE 22 BILLS PAYABLES

2020 2019

FET TET

HK$’000 HK$'000

NS Bills payables 20,328 30,399
20206 2019612 A31 8 « EREE As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of bills

REZHHNERES AT payables, based on invoice date, was as follow:

2020 2019

FET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

=& A LAR Within 3 months 20,328 30,399
F20204 2019612 A31 8 « ERZEE As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of bills
BEREE B TTAHE R A N FEMRE o payables were all denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair

values.

23 EWNEE - HtELFIERE 23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

=B AU RIEEBUE 8 ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED GOVERNMENT
GRANTS
@ BHEE  HMENSRERE (a) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals
tEH
2020 2019
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
fEsHEERFMAX Accrued employee benefit expenses 12,039 17,799
FERTEHEMS R Accrued sale commission expenses 17,047 16,792
EAthfEET &R Other accruals 10,376 8,455
FEET ETRISE Accrued listing expenses - 8,717
WHEMZE « R K& R Payables for acquisition of properties, plant
FERIFIR and equipment 2,625 2,986
H b FRIE Other payables 38,151 32,959
A A& ©) Contract liabilities (Note 5(c)) 22,257 -
102,495 87,708
720205 K%2019512 A31H - 548 As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of
8 - RN FAERESBEANERE contract liabilities, other payables and accruals approximated
EEANFERE - their fair values.
WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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235 8E - EMENRERE
=T 5 A DA R IR SIE BT 6 B (4R

@ BNEE  HtENRERE

TEA(E)

ANER B E A FE AN R KA B B R AR
EEA NHIEREEHE

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED GOVERNMENT
GRANTS (continued)

(@) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals
(continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and
accruals were denominated in the following currencies:

2020 2019
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
AR RMB 7,895 5,995
ETT usD 19,273 18,539
BIT HKS$ 40,928 36,088
68,096 60,622
(b) IESEBR AT BY (b) Deferred government grants

2020 2019
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B1ATHE At 1 January 1,577 -
FAEUHK Received during the year - 2,925

BEOo 2 2EKaER Released to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (374) (1,348)
1,203 1,577
FERNEREL Non-current portion 170 428
BRERER 7> Current portion 1,033 1,149
1,203 1,577

HE2020F12A31H » REBKRE
SR THER R E R RERT
AlFE o Bt - MEEFEMFIEE 142020
F12A31BELE - B Lt RB 5
AN 2 E BB AR A E A M R E K
1R REL o

BEEFERERAR

20205 7R

Up to 31 December 2020, certain of these expenses and the
equipment and software licenses have not been incurred or
purchased by the Group. Therefore, the corresponding advance
payments have been deferred as at 31 December 2020. Except for
the aforementioned unutilised portions, there are no other unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.
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24 |RE 24 DIVIDENDS

HZE2019F 12 A31HILEE @ B TER
BEEERA TR HE S 104,000,000/ 7T
LA SH B IR & B B I IR A Rl R IE M A =
wEE e

202083 A27BHETTHNEES SR L
BEERZRMNEE2019F12 A31 B IEF
R RHARE 8 A E @0.018 T - &
20,000,000/ 7T ° B B REZE20205 12 A
31HIEFEIRST ©

AKRABEFTERIKNTEZ20205F12 A31
HIEFERHEIRR S -

R2021F3 A29H BTN EE S 23

BEEREFRMNEE2020F12A31 B ILEE
H) R B AR B &A% @ A% 0.005 8 7T -+ A £
10,000,00078 70 ° KREAMR BE R Z S 4R 4 B
BHRERPARMBEMEE - BERER
R REF RE EHER - ZREBR
LA ZE2021F12 A31 B EFERBFU

mohe

176

During the year ended 31 December 2019, interim dividend
payable to the then immediate holding company amounting to
HK$104,000,000 was settled by way of offsetting the amount due
from the then immediate holding company.

At the board meeting held on 27 March 2020, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.01 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019, amounting to
a total of HK$20,000,000. The dividends were paid during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the board meeting held on 29 March 2021, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.005 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020, amounting
to a total of HK$10,000,000. The final dividend was not reflected
as dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements, but
will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year
ending 31 December 2021 after receiving shareholders” approval at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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25 $RITER

25 BANK BORROWINGS

2020 2019
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEENEAER D Non-current portion
——EC4F - 1102 years - 28,500
—Z—ZEhF -2 to5 years - 16,500
- 45,000
BNEAER 2 Current portion
——FR — within 1 year = 6,000
—BIRENRERE - repayable on demand 261,456 215,593
261,456 221,593
261,456 266,593
Rt R BERBREZ KRN EEZRITE The bank borrowings were repayable, without taking into account
FREAR - the repayable on demand clauses, as follows:
2020 2019
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FRX Within 1 year 244,956 221,593
—E 4 Between 1 and 2 years 6,000 28,500
“ERF Between 2 and 5 years 10,500 16,500
261,456 266,593
202012 A31H - B2 — KR TEXK As at 31 December 2020, bank borrowings of approximately
N AT 8 B ZSRE IR A A (G R ) IR R HK$261,456,000 (2019: HK$215,593,000) which contain a clause
AT E A 261,456,000 78 7T (201 9¢ : that gives the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at
215,593,000/87C) D AREBAE © T any time has been classified as a current liability irrespective of the
BERART H%ﬁﬁ&fﬂ%]ﬁk{lﬁ?ﬂZﬁ% o probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.
202012 A31H @ SRITE R INET As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average effective interest rate
BEREFEDFH2.1%(20194F :4.4%) ° on bank borrowings was 2.1% (2019: 4.4%) per annum.
20204 201912 A31 8 » AEEH As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, bank borrowings of the Group
IRITERTIAETEHE - BERERFEN were denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair values.
= o
BEEFERERAR
2020 ) 1 77
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25 RITHERR) 25 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

MR2020F12 A31H @ FITEZIRBEITHE As at 31 December 2020, the bank borrowings and banking facilities

TIAR AT EE IR R Z B AR were secured by a letter of undertaking from Mr. Raymond Chu,

IR T2 BR IR B Ak BB 4 AR M RGEE R B a director and Controlling Shareholder of the Company, and Mr.

o Wilson Chu, the Controlling Shareholder of the Company.

R2019F12 A31H @ FITEZIREBETHE As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings and banking facilities

THLA N5 S IE{EL IR - were secured by the following:

(i) BFEHATEANE T (i) Certain properties owned by certain related companies;

(ii) & TEAEE A TR AL A HE(R323,000,000 (i) Guarantee of HK$323,000,000 from certain related companies;
BT R E R AR A R RE AR and guarantee of unlimited amounts from Defond HK;

(i) AY=H20194E12 A31 B2t Ay mpR za (iii) Guarantee of unlimited amount from Rayson as at 31 December
R o BRIEIRTHIMEER B2 2019. For details of the guarantee arrangement, please refer to
FiEE3.2 %30 Notes 3.2 and 30;

(iv) EEEBAAENL (iv) Letter of undertaking from Defond HK;

() RAREERIERBERERASEEER (v) Personal guarantee of unlimited amounts from Mr. Raymond
b N/NT Pl e =R e o Y b ki Chu, a director and Controlling Shareholder of the Company,
RLEEAER : & and Mr. Wilson Chu, the Controlling Shareholder of the

Company; and

(vi) $R1T1F5K10,000,00078 7T (HIFE17) ° (vi) Bank deposits amounting to HK$10,000,000 (Note 17).

1 78 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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26 B KRR E 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
RHEE EE O RORE
Number Nominal Share
of shares value premium

T TAET THET
‘000 HK$000  HK$'000

7201951 H15H At 15 January 2019

(FEMECSZ B E) (Date of incorporation) - - -
BT Issuance of shares 1,000 10 -
MR2019F12A31H K At 31 December 2019

2020F1 H1H and 1 January 2020 1,000 10 -
B 317 (M) Capitalisation issue (Note a) 1,499,000 14,990 (14,990)
R TR AT (FiEEb) Issuance of shares upon listing (Note b) 500,000 5,000 120,000
I 17 BEATRCAR Share issuance costs - - (24,655)
72020912 A31H At 31 December 2020 2,000,000 20,000 80,355

Bt 5 Notes:

@ REARARER2019F12 108 BBHE (a) Pursuant to the written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
ERFEZE » 202051 A108 © REMERARD Company on 10 December 2019, a total of 1,499,000,000 shares of
AIAR B AL 2% R B AT4 $£1,499,000,000 0% B A% HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders
E{E0.01B TR D - 7 L A 8RR 8 A of the Company as of 10 January 2020 on a pro rata basis by way of
N A8 A% 15 5% 18 BR 7 5 14,990,000 78 T & AN capitalisation of HK$14,990,000 from the Company’s share premium
e, = account on the Listing Date.

(b) 72020F1 8108 @ IREEBARBEERE (b) On 10 January 2020, pursuant to the Hong Kong public offering and
BECE([2REE]) - ARANUER0.258 international placing (the “Global Offering”), the Company issued a
TLRI(ERE 175 $£500,000,000% & @R - B total of 500,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.25 per share
BRIBARE IR ERERDBEITRAZAN) A for a total gross proceeds (before related share issuance costs) of
125,000,000/ 7T, © HK$125,000,000.

BERBERARAT
202043 ) 179
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27 IRERERERMETE 27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS
@ FAKRMESHAIGHRELEE (@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax for the
EHRRESHIR year to net cash generated from operations
2020 2019
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
MRATS B AR F Profit before income tax 3,495 43,960
AT EIEEL A% Adjustments for:
BhE U A (FI559) Finance income (Note 9) (783) (69)
AR (FEE9) Finance costs (Note 9) 11,980 19,362
ITE(MIEE12) Depreciation (Note 12) 33,066 31,412
wan (FIRE13) Amortisation (Note 13) 2,112 1,614
FERERER(HE6) Reversal of impairment of inventories (Note 6) = (409)
Z 5 U IBERERH# (Mi5E  Provision for impairment of trade receivable
18) (Note 18) 1,456 _
HEWME « BE MR EREIE Losses on disposal of properties, plant and
(MfzED) equipment (Note b) 731 2,291
HEEITzE(MiE7@)  Gain on lease modification (Note 7(a)) ) -
BT B (M7E23(b)) Government grants (Note 23(b)) (374) (1,348)
51,681 96,813
LEEREY Changes in working capital:
— &5 hEMEWFRIE — Trade and other receivables (59,196) 69,454
—FE — Inventories (5,286) 95,816
—ERRARE 5 2 55 — Balances with related parties 3,058 (2,242)
—E 5 REMENFA — Trade and other payables 78,548 (100,927)
— BRI — Bills payables (10,071) (19,459)
— BB D - Deferred government grants - 2,151
KEEARFIRS Net cash generated from operations 58,734 141,606

(b) REERERERT  HEY (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
¥ BENRBREHEERE proceeds from disposal of properties, plant and
equipment comprised:

2020 2019
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEREHE Net book amounts disposed 848 2,544
HEMZE - BE K& Losses on disposal of properties,
BEE (M5E7()) plant and equipment (Note 7(a)) (731) (2,291)
HEME - BEK Proceeds from disposal of properties,
REPTIS IR plant and equipment 117 253
180 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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27 REBRERERMFT(E) 27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
() MEEHELEMNESEHERENT : (c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from
financing activities were as follows:
HEAE RITRE
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
TET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
H2019F1818 At 1 January 2019 60,649 396,373
Remn= Cash flows
—IRITIEFRPTIS R - Proceeds from bank borrowings - 896,933
—BBIRITER - Repayment of bank borrowings - (1,026,713)
—SHEBFEZAEES -~ Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities (11,918) -
—SNHEEREZFIEIHS - Payment of interest element of lease
liabilities (3,620) -
HithIFIR & Other non-cash movements
—FMERZ — Interest expenses 3,620 -
—EN =5 — Exchange difference (780) -
M2019%12831H At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020
K%202051A18 47,951 266,593
Reng Cash flows
—IRITIERPIIF IR - Proceeds from bank borrowings - 644,672
—BEBIRITER — Repayment of bank borrowings - (649,809)
—SHEBFEZAEES - Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities (13,925) -
—SNHEEBBZFEED - Payment of interest element of lease
liabilities (2,925) =
Hi R 2 28 Other non-cash movements
—AEHEAR — Addition of lease liability 3,383 =
—F B — Interest expenses 2,925 -
—iETHEaE — Written-off of lease liability (73) =
—[EH E=E — Exchange difference 1,449 _
720205128318 At 31 December 2020 38,785 261,456
d) FEFRERS - (d) Major non-cash transactions:

(i) EZE2019F12A31BILFE - & (i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, interim
NEFEEERAFNHHRE dividends payable to the then immediate holding company
104,000, ooo%ﬁmﬁiﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂ’éuﬁz amounting to HK$104,000,000 were settled by way of
ERERERQBFIEN T A offsetting the amount due from the then immediate holding
- company.

B 4 [ R 420 G T
fﬁbiﬁﬂ;\gzﬂxﬁ RAF 1 8 1
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28 TEMBRAIFE

AREER2020F12 A31 B EZNE R A

T - BREBHRBIN

BRAIREHEE K

AMERAKEEEFENETARER - B
AN ARESL SN AR EHRR
e MR ECHERTREEES

28 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2020 are set out
below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting
solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the Group, and the
proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held

by the Group. The countries of incorporation or registration are also

2 o their principal place of business.
FRERENEERES
Ownership interest held
by the Group
2020 2019
B3 Al ]
AR BBREA TEEBR BRTR
WEARER BEENER e ERRRE ESL FrA R
Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and Principal activitiesand  Issued and fully Interest Interest
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity place of operation paid up capital held held
B
Direct interests:
Brilliant Holdings RBRUEE RRBRLES (EI
Investments Group Limited ~ 2019%1A108 : ETREER
BRAT
Brilliant Holdings BVI; 10 January 2019; Investment holding UsD1 100% 100%
Investments Group Limited  limited liability in BVI
company
R -
Indirect interests:
EFRRERAF OCE REBHEETEM 100,000/ 7T
2010674298 :
BRAT
Wise Ally Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong; 29 July Trading of electronic HK$100,000 100% 100%
2010; limited liability products in Hong Kong
company
REBENEXARAA  FE R EIRER 64,800,000 70
20105123138 HEETEM
BRAT
Dongguan Wise Ally The PRC; 13 December  Manufacturing and trading  HK$64,800,000 100% 100%

Industrial Co., Ltd.*
REREFEXERAR)

182

2010; limited liability
company

of electronic products in
the PRC

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only. This company does
not have official English name.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29 BAREIE 29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RER - BEFJNERRELEEBESERE Capital expenditure in relation to the purchases of plant and machinery
Lhes 2 BT ¢ contracted for but not yet incurred at the end of the year was as
follows:
2020 2019
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETA B E R B Contracted but not provided for 4,870 2,235
30 BB R 7 KA 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
BT BB e R - FERIE SIS B Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
BREHSTHERNNEMTITREATE jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party in
7 BRSEFIEE RN EBMESK holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
BHRZAMEDOR  ARBRENEEIRE returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
HREAEN  UREBREELNRN T its power over the investee to affect the amounts of the investor’s
B3R 77 o RANZ T3 X BB RE H s K R4 returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
il - TRARAR ST o BREE T RT LA EA common control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals
HHEHME - or other entities.
FERR BRI ST 1358 - The Controlling Shareholders are disclosed in Note 1.1.
BEERERARAT
w00Em 183
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30 B A R B R (1E) 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

FRAEASEFERXZNTEMBTIT Major related parties that had transactions with the Group during the
year were as follows:

BARE T R2020F % 2019512431 A RAK MV EE
Related parties Relationship with the Group as at

31 December 2020 and 2019

KEBRE ERRRMARBES
Mr. Raymond Chu Controlling Shareholder and Director of the Company
REBESLE PR AR
Mr. Wilson Chu Controlling Shareholder
ki RRRES
Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley Director of the Company
REALE ARBEF(HcFa)
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Director of the Company (Note a)
REEXRERAA PR3 AR AR SR 2
Defond Electrical Industries Limited Controlled by Controlling Shareholders
meEL i 12 S B SR 2
Defond HK Controlled by Controlling Shareholders
BEEARERNERAT P P2 AR A R A%
Defond Electech Co., Ltd* (B LB AR RN ER A7) Controlled by Controlling Shareholders
FeE Note:
@ BREPEEER2019F3 190 REZERE (@ Mr. Chan Chi Ming has been appointed as the director of HK Wise Ally
BEEFNESE - since 19 March 2019.

*  For identification purpose only

1 84 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 BEE AR Z R EEeR (1)

(@

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

EFER R ARAR

20205 7R

ERRARE 7 2 FEER (a) Balances with related parties
2020 2019
FHET THT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ESHE Trade nature
PE W AR X B R Amounts due from related companies
—ffgig/é]ﬂﬁiﬁﬁ A — Defond Electech Co., Ltd*
BRA ﬁ%%éﬂﬂ&ﬁxfﬁﬁﬁﬁ — 366
—E=EE %"ﬁfﬁ@ﬂ — Defond Electrical Industries lelted = 2,566
- 2,932
BB A AR IE Amount due to a related company
—EETEBRA — Defond Electrical Industries Limited 126 -
126 —
*  For identification purpose only
2020 &2019%F12 8318 - FEWEA As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the amounts due from
BNRRIBAERE - A KRERK related companies were unsecured, interest-free and repayable
w4+ — (@A RES - within the next twelve months.
N B FE IR BEEE N B IR IE — R EE A 60 The Group’s amounts due from related companies were made
KHZEH - generally on credit terms of 60 days.
185
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30 BEE S R Z R EEeR(48)

(a) EZEARS TS 2 &5 ER ()

186

MR2020FE K2019F12 A31H » BRNE
5% E & eI B A
BN R FUBIR B E H MR

T

& L B G 2 R OB

BRI R FE 1 7

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(@) Balances with related parties (continued)

Amounts due from related companies

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the aging analysis of

B amounts due from related companies and amount due to a
i related company of trade nature, based on invoice date, were as
follows:

2020 2019
FET THETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
0Z230K 0 to 30 days = 46
31E260K 31 to 60 days - 320
61£290K 61 to 90 days - -
91E180K 91 to 180 days - 2,566
- 2,932

ARLE) A NGIE/ S Amount due to a related company
2020 2019
FERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E30K 0 to 30 days 126 -

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 BEE AR Z R EEeR (1)

(b) EREAB LT KRS

BRARE ISR R M S D P B 5
SN B ZE2020% 201912 8318 1
FE - LATIRZIEE S B RBEIE

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

(b) Transactions with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out with
related parties during the years ended 31 December 2020 and

TRER AR T HETT 2019, at terms mutually agreed by both parties:
() ERRRRBHAEAERARE () Personal guarantees provided by the Controlling

BREREZEHATRENDTE

=R

HZE2019F12A318IEFE - &
FAREEBITERLIBITRE A
B 525 BT aEk 22 A% IR SRR 4 A LA
AR - DA RIERRAR B Az fil A
REH A AERERIR o 522020
F1H108 @ Ll ERAEE

FT& T UARRER o

Shareholders and corporate guarantees provided by

companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain of
the Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities were
secured by personal guarantees from the Controlling
Al Shareholders and corporate guarantees provided by
companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as set
out in Note 25. On 10 January 2020, the aforementioned

arrangement was released upon the listing of the Group.

Continuing transactions

(ii) Purchase of goods

2020 2019

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

BREB N AREE D Purchases of goods from a related company 2,172 99
EERFRZMNE QR Purchases of goods from the then fellow

KREEm subsidiaries = 1,592

EERERARAR
20205 7R
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30 AR5 X 7 K 48R () 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(b) BRI SRR 5 (4E) (b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
IEHERS Discontinuing transactions
(iii) Wz (iii) Revenue
2020 2019
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
MERRRNEAR Sales to the then fellow subsidiaries
TEHHE - 17,820
(iv) B (iv) Expenses
2020 2019
FTHET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RS EE =N Reimbursement of expenses to the then
BRI fellow subsidiaries - 1,011
(v) HERE (v) Sale of equipment
2020 2019
FEx FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
) & B[] X P B 8 ) Sales of equipment to the then fellow
&SRR subsidiaries . 478
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30 BB A R 5 R AR () 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)
(b) EERABE T IR 5 (4E) (b) Transactions with related parties (continued)
FEERZ (4E) Discontinuing transactions (continued)
i) BE (vi) Dividend
2020 2019
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEIRE RN EEER Dividend declared to the then immediate
NAERRE holding company - 104,000
LB R 5 TRET A E TR E The above related party transactions were carried out on terms
ERGRTGETT - RAREFERE © Z mutually agreed between the parties. In the opinion of the
EXGINAEBHNBEXKBIETD directors of the Company, these transactions were conducted in
RIBE BB R IRTUETT - the ordinary course of business of the Group and in accordance

with the terms of the underlying agreements.

() TEEEEHM (c) Key management compensation
HEERBENKENETZEREDN Compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
FENZI RN services is shown below:
2020 2019
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
ITER¥F® Wages and salaries 18,452 21,574
RIKEA—RTERIKETE]  Pension costs — defined contribution plan 132 144
18,584 21,718
BEBRERAR AR
00058 189
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31 EENRNE R ES 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(@ EEME (@) Directors’ emoluments
BREENSNEYET - The remuneration of each director is set out below:

RER REIHEAS
ik e B BONE  SHESER act
Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ and benefits  to pension
Fees Salary honus in kind scheme Total
TR THRT THT TR THET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EZ2020%128  For the year ended
JIALEE 31 December 2020

HITES Executive directors

-KEE — Chu Wai Hang Raymond - 484 - - - 484
— BT - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley = 3,158 45 1,440 18 4,661
— &5 — Chan Chi Ming - 2,033 - = = 2,033

BUIHITES  Independent non-executive

directors
— 2L - Ling Imma Kit Sum 293 = = - - 293
—FEf - Lee Wa Lun Warren 293 - - - - 293
- BT - Szeto Yuk Ting 293 - - _ _ 293
879 5,675 45 1,440 18 8,057
HZ2019F128  For the year ended
JIALEE 31 December 2019
HITES Executive directors
—KEE — Chu Wai Hang Raymond - 1,300 - - - 1,300
Lk - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley - 3,500 1,522 1,440 18 6,480
LR — Chan Chi Ming - 1,715 395 - - 2,110
BUIHITES  Independent non-executive
directors
— R - Ling Imma Kit Sum - - - _ _ _
—FER — Lee Wa Lun Warren - - - - - -
— RS - Szeto Yuk Ting - - - - _ _
- 6,515 1,917 1,440 18 9,890
190 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 EENRIZ R ER () 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

@@ EEM= (&)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

R20199F3 A118 » KREE LA KR
EARRRRITESRERF YA
A EERATERNRRNITEERRT
AR - FRERSLAMR2019F3H19
HEZEAARRRMITESE - TN -
BENBARRETHBEBRARAIES
E/RAEBEES  MAEERFS
BEEZEABAARMITESR RS
EBZEWNBARINESE R RNAE
ErEERFEZFEE -

ERLE T FERILERAEHRE
FAER2019F12 A10B ER T AARA
AN FEFITESE - BLE20195F12H
3THIEFE - BUIEATTEEWEN
EZHHREEREZEZEHB o

HZE2020F K%2019F12 A31 H IEF
& - BEEEAR A B E E () B B AL UL
B R B () EEAR A
R EME QR EBN A R
B S B & o

HE2020F12A31B 15 E - KE1B
St BB LAERMERLEED R
HEM£36,0008 7T * 342,000/ 7T K&
151,200 7T °

HZE2019F12 A31BIEFE @ HHER
NAEENENERERETMAE -

(b) EBRABRRKLEEFR

HZE2020F K%2019F12 A31 H IEF
B BERKRIEEERFRAEEERE
BB A RELHE - BRIKEF
REARH] : IMEE(AIFER FRIE o

RERHTEEREMAE=H
RHEAE

HE2020F % 2019F12 A31 8 1L
B MERERESEREmMMAE=
FRRMERE -

BEEFERERAR

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond was redesignated as executive
director and chairman of the Company, and Mr. Tsang Ming
Chit Stanley was redesignated as executive director and CEO
of the Company on 11 March 2019. Mr. Chan Chi Ming was
appointed as executive director of the Company on 19 March
2019. They were also directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and/or employees of the Group during the year and
the Group paid emoluments to them in their capacity as the
directors of these subsidiaries and/or employees of the Group
before their appointment as executive directors of the Company.

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr.
Szeto Yuk Ting were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 10 December 2019. During the
year ended 31 December 2019, the independent non-executive
directors have not received any directors’ remuneration in the
capacity of directors.

None of the directors of the Company (i) received or paid any
remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii) received or
paid emoluments in respect of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries’
undertaking during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Chu Wai Hang
Raymond, Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley and Mr. Chan Chi
Ming waived emoluments of HK$36,000, HK$342,000 and
HK$151,200 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, none of the directors
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any emolument.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor were any payables
during the years 31 ended December 2020 and 2019.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services
No consideration was provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.

191



REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31 EENANE R ERE () 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

d) FBEUNES  HARESES
HEABRERREESRENE
BRAZBANER - ZERR
HtxZHWEaR

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

BREaMBRREMBOAKES
S BMYFE3 2FR IR ER TRIREEL

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, maximum liability that may be incurred under the

HxABENT : guarantee as disclosed in Note 3.2 was as below:
RUBEE
BT
ERABR
ERNER
508/ 50R
FELH
B/ Aa%
Amounts/aggregate
ERITHEENRARE amounts paid or
Maximunm liability that may be incurred liability/aggregate
under the guarantee liabilities incurred
REQ during the
EE/ B4 REX financial year
Individually/ ER/E4 for the purpose
in aggregate Individually/ of fulfilling
ERIEAUE at the in aggregate the guarantee or
BRAER BEME Nature of guarantee heginning at the end RER discharging
Name of the borrower Nature of connection or security of the year of theyear ~ During the year the security
TiEn TiEn TiEn &R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE2020F12A310 LFE -
For the year ended 31 December 2020:
5200 BRBRH #r
REEAER
Defond HK Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders 282,000 - 282,000 -
BE219F12831BLEE:
For the year ended 31 December 2019:
BeRE BRBRH #x
REEAER
Defond HK Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders 85,000 282,000 282,000 -
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31 EEMNRER ()

d) EBEUES HARESES

HEABRERREEGRENE
ERAXBANER - ZERR
Htpx 7 &R ()

M3t - IRIE B HI 52018512 A20B M E &

Wik ERBRELERSENFIENZ
ERREAE o AN EE3 2T E - BAE
FFERELEBIL—HBER
TRE @ Bt ZEEBERARHIX
BR - ERERON—&5 - K2019F
12A318 » BEBFRFIERERNL
74,599,000 8 T ERIDAB K - BR
REBMR2020F1 B EHE#ER °

e EERRE - ZRHFHAEHNTH

EWN:

AR EREMIADFAEES
C RRARIBEERT AR R EENE
FEEZESEERESEAERDMRNER
A E20204F 201912 A31H IEF
EAREREEEFEEREAEEEKE
FRERZS « WHEREL -

EFER R ARAR

20205 7R

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors (continued)

Note: Pursuant to a sales and purchase agreement dated 20 December
2018, the Controlling Shareholders disposed of their entire equity
interests in Rayson. As disclosed in Note 3.2, HK Wise Ally,
Rayson and Defond HK entered into a joint bank facility under
which the borrowers provided cross guarantees as part of the
securities. As at 31 December 2019, the guarantee amounting
to approximately HK$74,599,000, provided by HK Wise Ally to
Rayson remained effective but was released upon the Listing of
the Group in January 2020.

(e) Directors’” material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2020 and 2019.
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(@) AR BMBARRER
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2020 2019
k=3 THExT FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
aE ASSETS
FERBEE Non-current asset
 BAMEAF Investment in a subsidiary 67,908 67,908
REBEE Current assets
FRIE ETHR S Deferred listing expenses - 7,475
TARTIE Prepayments 243 -
R EYNCIE ] Amount due from a subsidiary 96,073 -
Re KREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 4,005 -
100,321 7,475
BEE Total assets 168,229 75,383
ER EQUITY
AATERFEAELER Equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company
&N Share capital (b) 20,000 10
& &=E Share premium (b) 80,355 -
N Capital reserve (b) 67,898 67,898
Z2:tE1E Accumulated losses (b) 27) (15,753)
MR Total equity 168,226 52,155
nREAE Current liabilities
Hib eI sIE R EFER Other payables and accruals 3 8,717
FERTMIE A RIFRIE Amount due to a subsidiary = 14,511
weE Total liabilities 3 23,228
EEREERRE Total equity and liabilities 168,229 75,383

AR R H B AR R B 72202143 A
9HESESEHE  WRRATA

TE8E:

BT KEIE

EF

Tsang Ming Chit Stanley
Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2021 and was
signed on its behalf:

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Director

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2 AANBHBRRRREEESE 32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) KRABRAR HEEE (b) Share capital and reserve movement of the
Company
R B EE BRGE e} AR
Share Share Capital ~ Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve losses equity
TR FET TET TET TAT
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(HiFa)
(Note a)
R2019F18158 Balance at 15 January 2019
. BRALAB)2EH _(date ofincorporation - - - - -
REBE Comprehensive loss
FrEE lossfortheyear - - - (15,753) (15,753)
________________________________________________ - - - (15,753) (15,753)
BREFAETHRS Transaction with owners
RIESAHTEER  Issuance of ordinary shares pursuant
(B351.2) to the Reorganisation (Note 1.2) 10 - 67,898 - 67,908
| Eﬁii‘ﬁﬁ A;Eﬁﬁ']i%%ﬁ Total transaction with owners 10 - 67,898 - 67,908
#2019%12A8318 Balance at 31 December 2019
%2020F1 818248  and 1 January 2020 10 = 67,898 (15,753) 52,155
2HEkE Comprehensive Income
FERafl Profit for the year = = = 35,726 35,726
______________________________________ - - - 35,726 35,726
EERARTNRS  Transactions with owners
BRI E47(ff3E26(a))  Capitalisation issue (Note 26(a)) 14,990 (14,990) = = -
W EmEBTRE (FIE  Issuance of shares upon
26(h)) listing (Note 26(b)) 5,000 120,000 - - 125,000
BRI BEATRAR Share issuance costs 8 (24,655) = = (24,655)
& Dividend - - - (20,000) (20,000)
HBEEAETHRS Total transactions with owners 19,990 80,355 = (20,000) 80,345
720205128310 2 &8 Balance at 31 December 2020 20,000 80,355 67,898 27) 168,226
BB A RAT
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32 ﬁ;%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁiﬂ%&ﬁﬁ%@
IIE

(b) AT RARf#HE2E (R)

196

BifeE

()

MR2019F12 8138 @ IHELHEBE
/K Brilliant Holdings i) & &6 2 % 17 i%
MEEZTARQRA + LBREAR AR
Smartview * Smart Union X Grandview
fic 8% K2 3% 17 48 51 1,000,000 A% f& 17 °
Brilliant Holdings 720194512 A 13 H &
F & E 42 (E 18 11,000,000 1% = A% (B
0.01 B THEBRNEBENHS  BERL
ANB AR - £%/567,898,000/8 7T °

32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

(b) Share capital and reserve movement of the
Company (continued)

Note:

()

As at 13 December 2019, as directed by Defond HK, the entire
issued shares of Brilliant Holdings were transferred to the Company
in exchanges of the Company allotting and issuing 1,000,000
shares in total to Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview. The
excess of net assets value of Brilliant Holdings in aggregate as at 13
December 2019 over the par value of 1,000,000 ordinary shares at
HK$0.01 per share was credited to the capital reserve account with
the amount of HK$67,898,000.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2020
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